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NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE TWELFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE
COMPANY WILL BE HELD AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT UNIT
NO. 205, WELSPUN HOUSE, KAMALA CITY, S B MARG, LOWER PAREL (W), MUMBAI
400013, ON THURSDAY, 297 SEPTEMBER, 2022 AT 2.00 P.M. FOR THE PURPOSE OF
TRANSACTING THE FOLLOWING BUSINESSES:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the following;

a) Audited Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended 315 March,2022
together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

b) Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st March,
2022 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to RBI Circular on appointment of joint statutory auditors of
banks and NBFCs, DoS. CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22, dated April 27, 2021
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in
force); provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made there under and in accordance with the
receipt of consent and eligibility under Section 141 of the Companies Act 2013 and FORM
B as per the guidelines of RBI, M/s. G.P. Kapadia & Co., bearing registration no. 104768W
be and are hereby appointed as the Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period
of three years from the conclusion of Twelfth Annual General Meeting held in the calendar
year 2022 till the conclusion of the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting to be held in the
calendar year 2025, on a remuneration that may be determined by the Board in
consultation with the Joint Statutory Auditors from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company be and are hereby
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary
or desirable to give effect to this Resolution and matters incidental thereto”

B-WMMMMM

In of
To consider and if deemed fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 149, 150 and 152 and all other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), Articles of
Association of the Company and in accordance with the intimation given to the Reserve
Bank of India, Mr. Viraf Rustom Mehta (DIN: 00352598), who was appointed as an
Additional Director of the Company with effect from 11t July, 2022, by the Board of
Directors and who holds office only upto the date of the 12t Annual General Meeting of
the Company, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company
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to hold office for five (5) consecutive years i.e, upto 10 July, 2027.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company has received necessary disclosures and
declarations from Mr. Viraf Rustom Mehta, that he meets the criteria for Independence
as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per RBI Master
Directions for Core Investment Companies.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company shall pay sitting fees to Mr. Viraf Mehta as
determined by the board from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, things and to take such steps as may be necessary
and incidental to give effect to the foregoing resolution.”

4. Re-appointment of Mr. Bomi Pesi Chinoy as an Independent Director of the
Company:

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150 ,152 read with
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 [including any
statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the
time being in force], Mr. Bomi Pesi Chinoy (DIN: 07519315), who was appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company at the 7th Annual General Meeting of the
Company and who holds office of the Independent Director up to 30th September, 2022
and who is eligible for being re-appointed as an Independent Director, be re-appointed
as an Independent Director of the Company, to hold office for a second term
commencing from 1st October, 2022 to 30th September, 2027.”

Registered Office: By order of the Board

Unit no. 205, 2nd Floor, For SATTVA HOLDING AND

Welspun House, Kamala city, TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

Lower Parel (West), Mumbai-400013.

Phone:(022)40016500 ,,U"’ i

Email: sattvaholding@gmail.com H. H- M

Web: www.sattvaholding.com

CIN: U65923MH2011PTC214070 Hetali H. Mehta
Company Secretary &

Date: 13th September 2022 Compliance Officer

Place: Mumbai

Lh
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NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF. THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF
THE COMPANY.

THE PROXIES TO BE EFFECTIVE SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE
OF THE COMPANY NOT LATER THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE
MEETING. A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING
FIFTY (50) AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE
TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY.

IN CASE A PROXY IS PROPOSED TO BE APPOINTED BY A MEMBER HOLDING MORE
THAN 10% OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING
RIGHTS, THEN SUCH PROXY SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR
SHAREHOLDER.

2. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Annual
General Meeting (AGM) are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution
pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 together with specimen signatures
authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting.

3. Members attending the AGM are requested to bring with them the Attendance Slip attached
to the Annual Report duly filled in and signed and handover the same at the venue of AGM.
Members are requested to bring their copies of Annual Report while attending the meeting.

4. Relevant documents referred to the accompanying Notice and the statements are open for
inspection by the members at the registered office of the Company between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00
p.m. on all the working days excluding Saturdays, Sundays & Public Holidays during the
business hours up to the AGM and the same is also available for inspection by the Members at
the AGM.

5. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed to the
Notice.

6. Route Map of venue of Annual General Meeting is annexed to the Notice.
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Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

Item No. 2

As mandated by RBI vide its Circular. DoS. CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22, dated April 27, 2021,
the Company is required to appoint a Joint Statutory Auditor of the Company with effect from this
Annual General Meeting, since the asset size of the Company is more than Rs. 15,000 crores.

Accordingly, the Board at its meeting held on 13t September, 2022 has proposed and approved the
appointment of M/s. G.P. Kapadia & Co.Chartered Accountants, bearing registration no. 104768W as the
Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company for the period of three years from this 12" Annual General
Meeting.

M/s. G.P. Kapadia & Co.have given their consent for appointment as the Joint Statutory Auditors of the
Company. They have confirmed their eligibility for appointment in terms of the applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, read with the applicable rules made under and also in accordance with the
guidelines issued by RBI (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force) and they have also confirmed that they are not disqualified for appointment under the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

M/s. G.P. Kapadia & Co. shall hold office from the conclusion of this 12t Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of the 15% Annual General Meeting to be held in calendar year 2025, at such remuneration as
may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors and the Joint Statutory Auditors.

Relevant documents/ certificates are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during
the business hours on any working days except Saturdays, Sundays & Public Holidays between 11.00
a.m. to 1.00 p.m. upto the date of Annual General Meeting and the same is also available at the Annual
General Meeting for inspection by the members.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 2 of the notice. The Board of
Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 2 of the notice for approval by the
members.

Item No. 3

The Board of Directors of the Company appointed Mr. Viraf Rustom Mehta (DIN: 00352598) as an
Additional (Non-Executive Independent Director) with effect from 11t July, 2022 in accordance with the
provisions of section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, Articles of Association of the Company and other
applicable laws. The Company has given necessary intimations to Reserve Bank of India as per the
Master Directions for Core Investment Companies. Pursuant to the section 161 of the Companies Act,
2013, Mr. Viraf Rustom Mehta holds office only upto the date of the 12t Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Viraf Rustom Mehta is a Fellow Member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

Mr. Mehta has more than 40 years of experience in Audit, Assurance and Business Advisory Services.
He has experience in management of a professional firm employing over 400 people and has headed
the Audit and Assurance practice of the firm for several years. He has considerable experience of
having worked with a broad range of Indian and Multinationals clients in the Public and Private
sectors and was the engagement partner for several major companies listed on Indian Stock
Exchanges and other large companies in the public and private sectors.

He has also handled assignments relating to special audits and investigations on behalf of the Reserve
Bank of India, Securities Exchange Board of India and on behalf of the Special Court set up under the
Trial of Offences Relating to Transactions in Securities Act, 1992,
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He has been on the Board of Directors of some companies and a bank and was a member on the
committees of the Bombay Chamber of Commerce and of the ICAI as an invitee.

He has confirmed that he is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section
164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and has given his consent to act as an Independent Director along
with all other necessary disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and RBI regulations.

In the opinion of the Board the considerable experience and expertise of Mr. Mehta in various
professional areas would be of immense benefit to the Company.

The Board of Directors propose the appointment of Mr. Viraf Rustom Mehta (DIN: 0352598) as a
Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company for a tenure of 5 years pursuant to Section
149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and recommend the Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. 3 of
this Notice.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 3, except Mr. Viraf
Rustom Mehta.

Item No. 4

Mr. Bomi Pesi Chinoy was appointed as an Independent Director on the Board of your Company
pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the
Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, by the Shareholders at the
7th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company held on 28t September 2017 for the period
from 1st October, 2017 to 30t September 2022 (“first term” in line with the explanation to Sections
149(10) and 149(11) of the Act).

Mr. Bomi Chinoy is B. Com, L.L.B and an Associate Chartered Accountant. After qualifying as a
Chartered Accountant in the year 1967, Mr. Chinoy served in reputed Companies of India. He
worked in Tata Group for a period of 35 years in various capacities. His experience in Corporate
Finance, Company Law, Income Tax Law, Secretarial and Administrative fields, etc are more
beneficial to the Company. After his retirement in Tata Chemicals Ltd., he also served as CEO of
Tatachem Golden Jubilee Foundation (Charitable Trust) for a period of 10 years. He has a vast
experience in the field of Accounts, Finance, Taxation, Secretarial and General Administration.

Based on the above, the Board recommends the re-appointment of Mr. Bomi Pesi Chinoy, as an
Independent Director of the Company, to hold office for a second term, with effect from 1st
October 2022 upto 30th September, 2027.

Mr. Bomi Pesi Chinoy is not disqualified from being appointed as Directors in terms of section 164
of the Act and have given his consent to act as an Independent Director. The Company has received
declaration from Mr. Bomi Pesi Chinoy stating that he meets the criteria of independence as
prescribed under sub-section (6) of section 149 of the Act

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 4, except Mr. Bomi Pesi
Chinoy.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval of
the Members.
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STANDARD ON GENERAL MEETING (SS2):

Name of the Director Mr. Viraf Rustom Mehta Mr. Bomi Pesi Chinoy

DIN 00352598 07519315

Date of Birth 17-09-1954 07-08-1942

Date of first appointment on | 11-07-2022 29-03-2017

the board

Experience Mr. Mehta has more than 40 He has more than 35 years of
years of experience in Audit, experience in Corporate
Assurance and Business Advisory | Finance, Company Law, Income
Services Tax Law, Secretarial and

Administrative fields, etc .

Qualification Chartered Accountant Chartered Accountant

Terms and Conditions of Proposed to be appointed as an Proposed to be re-appointed as

Appointment Independent Director for a period | an Independent Director for a
of 5 years. period of 5 years as a second

* Remuneration
sought out to be paid | Sitting fees of Rs. 1.05,000 was
paid to Mr, Viraf for attending 3 Sitting fees of Rs. 2,10,000 was

term.

* Remuneration last

board meetings during the paid to Mr, Bomi for attending
drawn current financial year. 6 board meetings held during
the current financial year.
Other Directorship 3 3
Membership/Chairmanships National Peroxide Ltd.: Hitech Corporation Ltd.:
of Committee ; . :
Audit Committee: Chairman Audit Committee: Member
Stakeholder Relationship Stakeholder Relation
Committee : Member Committee: Member
Nomination & Remuneration Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee: Member Committee: Member
Corporate Social Responsibility Sattva Holding and Trading
Committee: Member Pvt. Ltd.:
Strategy Advisory Committee: Group Risk Management
Member Committee: Chairman

The Zoroastrian Co-operative
Bank Ltd.

Audit Committee: Member
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Shareholding in the
Company

NIL

NIL

Relationship with other
Directors, Managers, Key
Managerial Personnel (KMP)

No relation with any of the
Directors, Managers, Key
Managerial Personnel (KMP).

No relation with any of the
Directors, Managers, Key

Managerial Personnel (KMP).

Number of Board Meetings
attended during the year.

3

6

g
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SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U65923MHZ011PTC214070
Unit No. 205, 2nd floor, Welspun House, Kamala City, Lower Parel (West), Mumbai-400013.

ATTENDANCE SLIP
Folio No/ DP & Client Id.
(To be presented at the entrance)
I/We hereby record my/our presence at the Annual General Meeting of

the Company at Unit No. 205, 2nd floor, Welspun House, Kamala City, Lower Parel (West), Mumbai-
400013, on Thursday, 29th September, 2022, at 2.00 p-m.

PLEASE COMPLETE THIS ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING
VENUE.

Signature of the Member/Proxy

Eorm No.MGT-11

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 1 9(3) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN : {U65923MH2011PTC214070

Name of the company ¢ | SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

Registered office ¢ |Unit No. 205, 2nd floor, Welspun House, Kamala City, Lower Parel
(West), Mumbai-400013.

Name of the Member(s):
Registered address:

E-mail Id:

Folio No. / Client ID;

DP ID:

1 / We, being the member(s) of
1.Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature: , or failing him/her

shares of the above mentioned company, hereby appoint

2.Name;
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company, to be held on Thursday, 29t September, 2022, at 2.00 p.m. at Unit No. 205, 2nd
floor, Welspun House, Kamala City, Lower Parel (West), Mumbai-400013, and at any adjournment
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
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Resolution
No.

Particulars of Resolution

For

Against

Ordinary Business

To receive, consider and adopt the following;

a) Audited Standalone Financial Statements for the financial
year ended 31st March, 2022 together with the Reports of
the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

b) Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2022 together with the
Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors
thereon.

Special Business

To appoint M/s. G.P. Kapadia & Co.Chartered Accountants as
the Joint Statutory Auditor of the Company for a period of 3
years.

To appoint Mr. Viraf Mehta (DIN: 00352598) as a Non-
Executive Independent Director of the Company.

L

To re-appoint Mr. Bomi Chinoy (DIN: 07519315), as an
Independent Director for a second term of 5 years from 1%t
October, 2022 upto 30 September, 2027

Signed this day of
Signature of the Shareholder

2022

Signature of first Signature of second  Signature of third

Proxy holder

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should
Registered Office of the Company,

Meeting.

Proxy holder Proxy holder

Affix
Revenue
Stamp

be duly completed and deposited at the
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
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Board's Report

TWELFTH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-2022

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Twelfth Annual Report of the Company along with
the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 315t March, 2022.

COMPANY PERFORMANCE:
Financial Highlights:
| Particulars Standalone Consolidated
2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs.In (Rs.In (Rs.In
Lakhs) Lakhs) Lakhs)
Revenue from operation 10,518.75 2,859.91 10,518.75 2,859.91
Other Income 0.95 0.27 0.95 0.27
Total Revenue 10,519.70 2,860.18 10,519.70 2,860.18
Total Expenses 7,836.77 10,339.43 7,837.85 10,341.09
PROFIT BEFORE TAXES 2,682.93 -7,479.25 2,681.85 -7,480.91
Less: Provision for taxation 2099.65 550.65 2099.65 550.65
Excess provision of tax relating to - -5.83 - -5.83
earlier years
Deferred Tax -0.11 -2.25 -0.11 -2.25
PROFIT AFTER TAXES 583.38 -8,021.82 582.31 -8,023.48
Attributable to:

A)Shareholders of the Company 583.38 -8,021.82 582.31 -8,023.48
Other Comprehensive Income 2,74,232.26 | 434,907.97 | 2,74,232.26 | 4,34,907.97
(B) Total Other Comprehensive Income 2,74,232.26 | 434,907.97 | 2,74,232.26 @ 4,34,907.97
{C]Totgl](:omprehensive Income 2,74,815.64 | 4,26,886.15 | 2,74,814.57 4,26,884.49
sssssnsenaneens [A+B)

(D) Opening[balance of Other Equity 12,24,600.70 | 7,97,714.56 | 12,24,594.98 797710.50
(Including Comprehensive income)
(E) Closing balance of Other Equity 14,99,416.38 | 12,24,600.70 | 14,99,409.59 | 12,24,599.04
|
|
Basic (INR) 28.46 -391.31 28.41 | -391.39
Diluted (INR) 2.65 | -36.38 2.64 | -39.39

OPERATIONS:

During the financial year 2021-22 under review, standalone revenue increased to Rs. 10,518.75
Lakhs as compared to Rs. 2,859.91 Lakhs in the previous financial year 2020-21. Increase in

revenue is largely due to increase in the receipt of dividend from the group companies.

Company has booked profit (After tax) of Rs. 583.38 Lakhs for the financial year 2021-22 as
compared to loss (After tax) of Rs. 8021.82 Lakhs in the previous financial year 2020-21.

The consolidated revenue of the Company for the financial year 2021-22 is Rs. 10,518.75 Lakh, as
compared to Rs. 2,859.91 Lakh in the previous year 2020-21.

Consolidated profit (After tax) is Rs. 582.31 Lakh for the financial year 2021-22 as compared to
loss (After tax) of Rs. 8,023.48 Lakh in the previous financial year 2020-21.
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STANDALONE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT:

The audited financial statement of the Company drawn up, both on standalone and consolidated
basis, for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, are in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 “Ind AS Rules” prescribed under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules and other accounting principles. The
Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS and relevant

provisions of the Act based on the financial statement received from the subsidiary, as approved by
their respective Board of Directors.

DIVIDEND:

The Directors do not recommend any dividend on Equity Shares for the Financial Year ended 31t
March, 2022, since your Company wish to utilise the profits in the operations of the Company.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

The Company has transferred Rs. 8970.71 lakhs to the Statutory Reserve in accordance with
section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, wherein not less than twenty percent of the
net profit is to be transferred to such reserve.

Further, the Company has not transferred any amount to any other reserves.
SHARE CAPITAL:

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company was Rs. 2,20,00,000/- divided into 20,50,000 equity
shares of Rs. 10/- each, 1,00,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10 each and 50,000
Unclassified shares of Rs. 10/-each. The paid-up equity share capital of the company was Rs.
2,05,00,000/- as on 31st March, 2022. During the financial year under review, there was no change
in the Share Capital of the Company.

During the financial year under review, there was no transfer of shares.

NON-ACCEPTANCE OF DEPOSITS:

During the Financial Year 2021-22, your Company has not accepted any deposits within the
meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and as such, no amount of principal or interest was
outstanding as of the date of balance sheet. Further, the Company has borrowed Rs. 750 lakhs from
Mr. Malav Dani, Director of the Company for business operations of the Company during FY 2021-
22. Loan of Rs. 1465 lakhs is outstanding as on 315t March, 2022 to be repaid to Mr. Malav Dani. The
Company had obtained an undertaking from him declaring that loan provided by him to the
Company is out of his own funds and not from borrowed funds.

Rv (1] L »
Your Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company under the category of Non-Deposit Taking

Systemically Important Core Investment Company (NBFC- ND-SI-CIC) registered with Reserve
Bank of India vide its Certificate dated 215t June 2019.
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There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the
Company which has occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the
financial statements relate and the date of the report relate,

Your Company engaged in Investment, Trading and holding financial & Non-financial assets, its
activities do not involve any expenditure on Technology and Research and Development and,
therefore, the other particulars in the Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not required
to be submitted. Further, the Company is not energy intensive. However, every effort is made to
ensure optimum use of energy by using energy- efficient computers, processes, and other office
equipment. Constant efforts are made through regular/ preventive maintenance and upkeep of
existing electrical equipment to minimize breakdowns and loss of energy.

Foreign Exchange earnings: Nil
Foreign Exchange Outgo: Nil

ISSUE AND LISTING OF DEBENTURES:

Your Company on 5t February, 2020 issued 198 Listed Secured Rated Redeemable Non-
Convertible Debentures having face value of Rs. 1,00,00,000/- per debenture with zero percent
coupon rate on private placement basis amounting to Rs. 198 crores and listed on BSE Limited with
effect from 13% February, 2020 and 980 Listed Secured Rated Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures having face value of Rs. 10,00,000/- with zero percent coupon rate on private
placement basis amounting to Rs. 98 crores and the same was allotted on 26t August 2021 and
listed with BSE Limited with effect from 2nd September 2021.

The Company further issued 980 Listed Secured Rated Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures
having face value of Rs. 10,00,000/- with zero percent coupon rate on private placement basis
amounting to Rs. 98 crores and the same was allotted on 2nd August 2022 and listed with BSE
Limited with effect from 5t August, 2022.

The terms of 980 Listed Secured Rated Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures issued by the
Company on 26" August 2021 were restructured to reset the redemption premium rate and the
put/call notice period in the month of August, 2022, however the said NCDs were redeemed by the
Company on 26 August, 2022 consequent to the Put Notice received from the Debenture Holders.

The Company appointed IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited as the Debenture Trustee for the above
listed debentures. The Debenture Trust Deed is available on the website of the Company at

://sattvaholdi i cemen and also on the website of BSE Ltd. Contact
details of the trustee are also available on the website of the Company at

The objects of the issue were to make further investments in group companies, refinancing of
existing debt and general corporate purpose, and the proceeds have been fully utilized by the
Company for this purpose. A certificate on utilization of issue proceeds of Rs. 198 crores certified
by M/s Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP, Statutory Auditors of the Company was attached with the
Annual Report of the financial year 2019-20, which is also available on the website of the Company.
A certificate of utilisation of proceeds received from J.B. Dudhela & Co. Chartered Accountants for
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Rs. 98 crore issued on 26t August, 2021 and 2nd August, 2022 is also attached with this Annual
Report.

CTORS ANAGE ONNEL:

Mr. Malav A. Dani (DIN: 01184336), Mr. Ashwin R. Nagarwadia (DIN: 00466681) and Mr. Bomi P.
Chinoy (DIN: 07519315) were the Directors of the Company as on 315t March, 2022.

The Company has received the declarations and undertakings in accordance with the requirements
under ‘Fit and Proper criteria’ prescribed for the CICs by RBI vide its review guidelines notification
dated 13% August 2020, from all the Directors. The details provided by the Directors were
satisfactory in accordance with the requirement. The ‘Deed of Covenants’ has been executed
between the Company and Directors. The policy on fit and proper criteria is placed at the

Company’s website at following link http://sattvaholding.com/Display
During the year under review there was no change in Directorship of the Company.

Mr. Viraf Rustom Mehta (DIN: 00352598) was appointed as an Additional Independent Director of
the Company on 11t july, 2022, whose appointment is to be regularized at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting by the shareholders of the Company. He was appointed by the Board of Directors
after evaluating his eligibility criteria as per RBI Regulations and Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. Bomi Pesi Chinoy (DIN: 07519315) was appointed as an Independent Director on the Board of
your Company, by the Shareholders at the 7th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company
held on 28th September 2017. He holds office as an Independent Director of the Company up to
30th September 2022 (“first term” in line with the explanation to Sections 149(10) and 149(1 1) of
the Act). The Board of Directors recommend his re-appointment for second term of 5 years from
1st October, 2022 upto 30th September, 2027 at the ensuing 12th Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

[0) F THE N AL D 31sT
2022;

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors met 11 (Eleven) times, on the
following dates:

Sr. No. Date of Board Meetiqgj
1 27t April 2021
2) 31st May 2021
3) 11 August 2021
4) 11t August 2021
5) 26t August 2021
6 23rd September 2021
7] 10%™ November 2021
8) 12t November 2021
9) 26t November 2021
10) 215! January 2022
11) [ 11 February 2022
Sr. No. Particulars DIN Meeting
Attended
| 1. | Malav A. Dani 01184336 11
2. | Ashwin R. Nagarwadia 00466681 6
3. | Bomi P. Chinoy 07519315 11 4‘
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COMMITTEES:

During the financial year 2019-20, the Company has formed Risk Management Committee and Asset
Liability Management Committee in accordance with the RBI notification no. RBI/2019-20/88
DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 4" November 2020. The scope and
composition of the committees is in accordance with the extract of the notification which is provided
herein below;

1. Risk Management Committee:

The Risk Management Committee, which reports to the Board and consisting of Chief Executive Officer
(CEO0)/ Managing Director and heads of various risk verticals shall be responsible for evaluating the
overall risks faced by the NBFC including liquidity risk.

Sr no Name of the person Designation Head/Member
1. Mr. Percy Dajee CEO, CFO and Principal | Head
Officer
2: Mr. Anita Singh Manager - Finance and | Member
Taxation
3 Mrs. Hetali Mehta$ Company Secretary Member

$Appointed as a member w.e.f 15t May 2021

Mr. Mukesh Desai who was the CFO of the Company was appointed as a member w.e f 25t January
2021 and resigned as a CFO on 30t April 2021. The Committee was reconstituted to discontinue
him as a member of the Committee on 27t April, 2021,

2. Aisstlagiicn : Committes (ALCO):

The ALCO consisting of the NBFC's top management shall be responsible for ensuring adherence to the
risk tolerance/limits set by the Board as well as implementing the liquidity risk management strategy
of the NBFC. The CEO/MD or the Executive Director (ED) should head the Committee. The Chiefs of
Investment, Credit, Resource Management or Planning, Funds Management/ Treasury (forex and
domestic), Economic Research may be members of the Committee. The role of the ALCO with respect to
liquidity risk should include, inter alia, decision on desired maturity profile and mix of incremental
assets and liabilities, sale of assets as a source of funding, the structure, responsibilities and controls
for managing liquidity risk, and overseeing the liquidity positions of all branches.

Name of the perso Designation Head/Member
¢ ) ‘ Mr. Percy Dajee CEO, CFO and Principal | Head
Officer
2. Mr. Nozer Damania Manager Finance Member
3 Mrs. Hetali Mehta$ Company Secretary Member

$Appointed as a member w.e.f 15t May 2021

Mr. Mukesh Desai who was the CFO of the Company was appointed as a member w.e.f 25% January
2021 and resigned as a CFO on 30% April 2021. The Committee was reconstituted to discontinue
him as a member of the Committee on 27t April, 2021.
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3. Group Risk Management Committee (GRMC):

In accordance with the provisions of Review Guidelines issued by RBI for CICs vide its notification
dated 13" August 2020, the Company is required to form Group Risk Management Committee
(GRMC).

The GRMC shall report to the Board of the CIC that constitutes it and shall meet at least once in a

quarter. The composition of GRMC shall be as under:

TWELFTH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-2022

(i) The GRMC shall comprise minimum of five members, including executive members.

(ii) At least two members shall be independent directors, one of

GRMC.
(iii) Members shall have adequate and commensurate experience in risk management practices.

whom shall be the Chairperson of the

Sr no | Name of the person Designation Chairman/Member
1. Mr. Bomi Chinoy Independent Director | Chairman
2. Mr. Ashwin Nagarwadia Director Member
3. Mr. Percy Dajee CEO & Principal Officer | Member
4. Mr. K.S. Ramakrishnan Chief Risk Officer Member
5 Ms. Hetali Mehta# Company Secretary Member

#Appointed we.f, 15t May 2021

Mr. Mukesh Desai who was the CFO of the Company was appointed as a member w.e.f 25t January
2021 and resigned as a CFO on 30t April 2021. The Committee was reconstituted to discontinue

him as a member of the Committee on 27t April, 2021.

The GRMC will have the followi —

(i) Analyse the material risks to which the group, its businesses and subsidiaries are exposed. It must
discuss all risk strategies both at an aggregated level and by type of risk and make recommendations to the

Board in accordance with the group’s overall risk appetite.
(ii) Identify potential intra-group conflicts of interest.

(iii) Assess whether there are effe

risk oversight of the group.

(iv) Assess whether the corporate governance [framework addresses risk management across the group.

(v) Carry out periodic independent formal review of the group structure and internal controls.
(vi) Articulate the leverage of the Group and monitor the same.

ctive systems in place to facilitate exchange of information for effective

In accordance with the provisions of circular issued by RBI for CICs, RBI Circular No. RB1/2020-
21/88 Ref.No.DoS.CO.PPG./SEC.05/11.01.005/2020-21, the Company is required to form a
Committee of Senior Executives to conduct and review the Risk Based Internal Audit.

The Committee shall report to the Board of the CIC that constitutes it and shall meet at least twice
in a year. The composition of RBIA Committee shall be as under:

Sr. Name Chairman / Member | Designation
No.

1. | Hetali Mehta Chairman Company Secretary & Compliance

Officer

2. | Percy ]. Dajee Member CEO, CFO & Principal Officer
3. | Nozer Damania Member Manager Finance
4. | Anita Singh Member Manager Accounts & Taxation
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The Scope of the Committee shall be:

A
B.

c

STESH Mo

Evaluation of Risk Management systems;

Evaluation of control procedures in various areas of operations;

Undertake an independent risk assessment for the purpose of formulating a risk-based audit plan
which considers the inherent business risks emanating from an activity / location and the
effectiveness of the control systems for monitoring such inherent risks;

Review of the Risk Based Internal Audit Policy/ ies;

Every activity / location, including the risk management and compliance functions;

Governance processes on business decision making, risk management and control;

Promote appropriate ethics and values within the organization; and

Ensure effective performance management and staff accountability

Minimum scope as per the Policy on Risk Based Internal Audit

AUDITORS:

At the Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2021, M/s. Khandhar Mehta and Shah,
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration No: 125512W), were appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of three years to hold the office till the
conclusion of Annual General Meeting to be held in the calendar year 2024.

The Company has received the consent and eligibility in accordance with the following
provisions; same has been placed before the Board at its meeting held on said date;

1.

2,

As

The Board has received Eligibility Certificate as per Section 141 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 4 (1) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.
Eligibility Certificate in FORM B as per RBI guidelines for appointment of SAs.

per RBI guidelines with ref no. RBI1/2021-22/25

Ref:No.DoS.CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated 27 April, 2021, NBFCs with asset size of
more than 15,000 crores are required to appoint a Joint Statutory Auditor from FY 2022-23. Your
Company’s asset size being more than Rs. 15,000 crores is required to appoint a Joint Statutory
Auditor,

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 13th September, 2022, recommended appointment
of M/s. G.P. Kapadia & Co.,Chartered Accountants having registration number 104768W as the
Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company for a tenure of 3 years from the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. The Company has received the consent. eligibility certificate and Form B from the
proposed Auditors for their appointment.

The Board of Directors recommends appointment of M/s. G.P. Kapadia & Co.Chartered
Accountants bearing registration number 104768W as the Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company
from the ensuing 12th Annual General Meeting for a period of 3 years i.e., upto the 15th Annual
General Meeting to be held in the year 2025,

AUDITORS’ REPORT:

The auditors’ report for the financial year ended 31 March 2022 does not contain any
qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks.
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DETAIL PO DB

There were no frauds reported by the Statutory Auditors under provisions of Section 143(12) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

CRETARIAL RETARIAL ORT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors had appointed M/s.
Robert Pavrey & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditor of the
Company. The Audit Report of the Secretarial Auditor is attached as “Annexure - A”.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. During the financial year, such controls were tested and no reportable material
weakness in the design or operation was observed.

LD C
Your Company continued as a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Rayirth Holding and Trading Company
Private Limited (Rayirth) and during the year under review Rayirth was continued as the
subsidiary of Mefree LLP.
Mefree LLP is the Ultimate Holding of the Company.

AILS OF OMPAN COMPAN ENTURES:

Your Company’s subsidiary, Canes Venatici Trading Private Limited has reported a loss of Rs. 1.07
lakhs during the financial year ended 315t March 2022.

Your Company does not have any Associate or Joint Venture Companies. A statement containing
salient features of the financial statements and other necessary information of the subsidiary
companies in the format prescribed under Form AOC-1 is included in the Annual Report as
‘Annexure B’.

LU/ ARANTI VIE DFE
A 20 THE FIN 2021-22:

The Company is registered as Core Investment Company with RBI. Thus, the provision of Section
186 except sub-section (1) of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

ACT,2013:
Your Directors state that:

(@) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31+t March, 2022, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

(b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2022 and of the Profit and Loss of the
Company for the year ended on that date;
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(c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis.

(e) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

() The Directors have laid down proper internal financial control and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and operating effectively.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

During the financial year, the Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Company has laid down a Risk Management Policy, defining Risk profiles involving Strategic,
Technological, Operational, Financial, Organisational, Legal and Regulatory risks within a well-
defined framework. The Risk Management Policy acts as an enabler of growth for the Company by
helping its businesses to identify the inherent risks, assess, evaluate and monitor these risks
continuously and undertake effective steps to manage these risks.

The Risk Management Committee consist of the members as mentioned hereinabove were
appointed in accordance with the requirements provided RBI notification no. RBI/2019-20/88
DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 4 November 2020 to review the robustness
of the Risk Management Policy. The periodical update on the risk management practices and
mitigation plan, if any of the Company were placed before the Board of Directors. The Board
periodically reviewed the updates and findings and suggested the areas where internal controls and
risk management practices can be improved.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to provisions of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, extract of
Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is annexed as ‘Annexure C’ to this report.

TI CTSO NTS WIT RT

During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract / arrangement / transactions with
related parties which were not in the ordinary course of business or not on arms’ length basis. The
Company had not entered into any transaction with related party that could be considered as
material. The related party transactions are disclosed under the Notes to Financial Statements for
the year 2021-22.

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1), as
prescribed in Form AOC - 2 under the Companies Act, 2013, is appended as ‘Annexure D'.

Additional Related Party Disclosures in compliance with Regulation 53(f) and Schedule V of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is provided in the financials of
the Company. The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on
the Company’s website /s holdi isplay/co ;
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CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:

There is no change in the nature of business carried on by the Company. The Company has not
changed the class of business in which the Company has an interest.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY:

The Company has formed and implemented the policy on Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace pursuant to the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Woman at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013. However, number of employees in the Company is less than the
prescribed limit. Hence, the Company has not formed any committee as required under aforesaid
provisions.

The company did not receive any such complaints during the year.

Name of the entity Asian Paints Limited

Manufacturer of Paints, Adhesives and other
decorative products

Type of business

Debt-equity ratio 0.00

Profitability of last two years FY 2020-21 - 3051.80 Crore

FY 2021-22 -3134.71 Crore

Nature and type of exposure on the entity

Equity Holding of 5.71%

Total exposure of the CIC towards non-
financial business

100%

Loans and Advances to the firms/Companies
in which Directors are interested

NIL

Investments by the loanee of the CIC in the
shares of parent company and group
companies

NA

Reason for not consoclidating

Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act,
2013, the Company is required to consolidate
the books of accounts of its subsidiary and
associate companies. However, Asian Paints
Limited is neither a subsidiary nor an
associate company of your Company.
Accordingly, the books of accounts of Asian
Paints Limited are not consolidated with the
books of accounts of your Company.
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b. Miscellaneous Disclosures as per RBL

Registration/ licence/ authorisation, by
whatever name called, obtained from other
financial sector regulators

Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators
including strictures or directions on the basis
of inspection reports or other adverse findings

If the auditor has expressed any modified
opinion(s) or other reservation(s) in his audit
report or limited review report in respect of
the financial results of any previous financial
year or quarter which has an impact on the
profit or loss of the reportable period, with
notes on -

(i) How the modified opinion(s) or other
reservation(s) has been resolved:; or

(ii) If the same has not been resolved, the
reason thereof and the steps which the CIC
intends to take in the matter.

There have been no significant and material orders passed by the regulators, courts and tribunals
impacting the going concern status of the Company’s operations in future.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors placed on record their appreciation and thanks to the principals for their continued
support, guidance and commitment. Your directors also wish to thank the bankers, customers and
all business associates for their trust and faith placed on the company. Your Directors place on
record their appreciation of the contributions made by the employees to the growth of the Company
during the year.

On behalf of the Board
For Sattva Holding and Trading Private Limited
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Malav A. Dani Viraf R. Mehta ¢ ML
Director (DIN: 01 184336) Director (DIN: 00352598)
Place: Mumbai =~

Date: 13t September, 2022




Annexwcre A

RPACS

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rufes, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Sattva Holding and Trading Private Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Sattva Holding and Trading Private Limited (hereinafter called
“the Company™). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute bopoks. forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
March 31, 2022 (“Audit Period™) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the Audit Period according to the pron isions of*

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™) and various rules (“Rules”) made thereunder:
(i1) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(i) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 202 I;
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015; and
¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

The Company as a promoter of a listed entity has filed disclosures and complied with the following
SEBI regulations to the extent of its applicability:

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011,

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations. 2015.

Robert Pavrey & Associates
Company Secretaries

4/8, Santacruz Mansions, 2nd Floor, Santacruz (%). Mumbai 400055 .
Tel: +91 226710 0130/31 + Fax: +91 2226108160 » £ contact.us@rpacs.in
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following;

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of Indja.
(i1) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Ltd,

During the period under review the Company ha: complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned shove.

We further report that, there were no events/actions in pursuance of:

(1) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder:

(11) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(iii)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Sevurities) Regulations, 2018;

(iv)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of E:quity Shares) Regulations, 2009;

(v) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

(vi)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014; and

(vii)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of LCapial and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

requiring compliance thereof by the Company during the Audit Period

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on
examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof. the Company has complied
with the following laws applicable specifically to the Company:

* Master Direction — Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of executive directors,
non-executive directors and independent directors. There were no changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the Audit Period which required compliance with the
provisions of the Act. There were resignations and appointments uf Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of the Company that took place during the Audi Period and which were carried
out in compliance with the provisions of the Act,

Notice was given to all the directors to schedule the board meetings, and agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent by shorter notice by duly obaining the consents of the Board of Directors, except for
the board meetings held on 31" May, 2021 and 12 November, 2021 and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in
the minutes of the respective meetings of the Board or Committee thereof and no Director / Member
dissented on the decisions taken at such Board / Committee Meetings. The minutes of the general
meetings also record the total number of votes cast for the resolutions passed at such meetings,

There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size ar LR
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, rofan !
guidelines.




We further report that, during the Audit Period, the following events occurred which had a bearing
on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations and guidelines:

1) Issuance of Rated, Secured, Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures aggregating Rs. 98
crores listed on BSE Limited with effect from 1% September, 2021, on private placement basis;

2) Restructuring by resetting of redemption premium for 198 Rated. Secured, Redeemable Non-
Convertible Debentures listed on BSE Limited with effect from February 4, 2022; and

3) Saleofequity shares of Asian Paints Limited, as promoter holding. amounting to Rs. 500 crores.

For ROBERT PAVREY & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretarics

Wt

s
Place: Mumbai ROBERT PAVREY
Dated:May 23, 2022 Proprietor

FCS 2928 CP. No. : 1848 NZ
UDIN: F002928D000367413

This report is to be read with Annexure A which forms an integral part of this report.

27




To,
The Members
Sattva Holding and Trading Private Limited

“Annexure A”

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

I

ra

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate 10 obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records, The verification was done
On test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secrelarial records. We believe that the
process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Whereever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For ROBERT PAVREY& ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
ﬂ%u "*"""Q-
I*ATZE it’
Place: Mumbai ROBERT PAVREY
Dated: May 23, 2022 Proprietor

FCS 2928 CP. Nu. : 1848
UDIN: FOO2928D000367413
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Annexure ‘B’
Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures.

- ari
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Name of the subsidiary Canes Venatici Trading Private
Limited
Country India
The date since when subsidiary was acquired 04/05/2013

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the 01/04/2021 to 31/03/2022
holding company’s reporting period

Reporting currency INR

Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in the | Not Applicable
case of foreign subsidiaries

Share capital Rs.1.00
Reserves & surplus Rs. (6.80)
Total assets Rs. 1.10
Total Liabilities Rs. 1.10
Investments -

Total Revenue -

Profit (Loss) before taxation Rs. (1.07)
Provision for taxation -

Profit (Loss) after taxation Rs. (1.07)
Proposed Dividend =

Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100%

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: NIL
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: NIL
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Nil

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated

or acquired

Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on
the year end

No. of Shares

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture

Extend of Holding %
Description of how there is significant influence

Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated

Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited
Balance Sheet

Profit or Loss for the year

Considered in Consolidation

Not Considered in Consolidation

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations - Nil
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year - Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sattva Holding And Trading Private Limited

CIN - U65923MH2011PTC214070

IR I e PJ , Q;f il

{

.won | VirafR.Mehta  Malav A. Dani Percy Dajee Hetali Mehta
Sy )5/ Director Director CEO & CFO Company Secretary
;>——"7"/ (DIN:00352598) (DIN: 01184336)

Date: 13t September, 2022
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE ‘C’
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended 31.03.2022
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies act, 2013 read with The Companies (Management and administration)

Rules, 2014]

FORM

A. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

NO.MGT-9

CIN U65923MH2011PTC214070

Registration Date 26/02/2011

Name of the Company SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
Category of the Company COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

Sub-Category of the Company

INDIAN NON-GOVERNMENT COMPANY

Address of the Registered office and contact details:

205, 2nd Floor, Welspun House,
Kamala City, Lower Parel (West), Mumbai - 400013.
Contact:022 4001 6500

Whether listed company

Yes ( Debt securities are listed)

Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and
Transfer Agent, if any

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd

C 101, 247 Park, LBS Rd, Surya Nagar, Gandhi Nagar,
Vikhroli West, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400083

ISIN

L

Equity - INE03CX01011
Non-Convertible Debentures —

INE03CX07018, INEO3CX07026, INEO3CX07034

- PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

Sr. Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of | % to total turnover of the
No. the Product/ | company

service
1 Activities of holding company 64200 100%

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr.
No.

Name and address of the
company

CIN/GLN

Holding/Subsidi
ary/Associate

% of shares
held

Applicable
Section

1. *Mefree LLP

Regd. Office Address: 205,
2nd Floor, Welspun House,
Kamala City, Lower Parel

(West), Mumbai - 400013

AAB-2395

Ultimate Holding 100% 2(46)

*Rayirth Holding and Trading
Company Private Limited
Regd. Office Address: 205,
2nd Floor, Welspun House,
Kamala City, Lower Parel
(West), Mumbai - 400013

U65923MH2012PTC230703

Immediate
Holding

100% 2(46)

Canes Venatici Trading Private
Limited

U51101MH2013PTC242927

Subsidiary 100% 2(87)(i)

31



SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED TWELFTH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-2022
U65923MH2011PTC214070

.. Regd. Office Address:

205, 2nd Floor, Welspun
House, Kamala City, Lower
Parel (West), Mumbai -
400013

*Sattva Holding and Trading Pvt. Ltd is a wholly owned subsidiary of Rayirth Holding and Trading Company Pvt. Ltd
(Rayirth) and Mefree LLP holds 100% equity shareholding of Rayirth.

D. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN
i. Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end of the %
Shareholders beginning of the year at 01.04.2021 year at 31.03.2022 Change
during
the year

Demat | Physic | Total % of #Demat | Physic | Total % of
al Total al Total
Shares Share

A. Promoters

1) Indian

a) Individual /HUF - - . 4 = . . g -

b) Central Govt.

c) *Bodies 2049999 |1 2050000 | 100% 2049999 (1 2050000 | 100% | Nil
Corporates

d) Banks / FI : : : : . : : : ;

e) Any Other.... - . - " . 3 & 7 5

Sub-total (A) (1):- 2049999 1 2050000| 100% 20499991 2050000/ 100% | Nil

2) Foreign
a) NRIs - - - - - - - - . -
Individuals

b) Other - - - - - - . 4 5 5
Individuals

c) Bodies - . . x = . 3 s 2
Corporates*

d) Banks / FI : : - ” " : . . -

e) Any Other - L . & = L d 5 n

Sub-total (A) (2):- - : : & %

Total shareholding of | 2049999 1 2050000/ 100% | 20499991 2050000| 100% | Nil
Promoter (A) =
(A)(1)+(A)(2)

*Rayirth Holding and Trading Company Private Limited along with its Nominee holds 20,50,000 Equity shares in the
Company.

B. Public
Shareholding

1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds - - = = 4 i = 2 1
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b)Banks / FI

c) Central Govt.

d)State Govt(s)

e)Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g)Flls

h)Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-

2) Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i. Indian

il. Overseas

b) Individuals

i. Individual
shareholders

holding nominal
share capital uptoRs.

1 lakh

ii. Individual
shareholders

holding nominal
share capital in

excess of Rs 1 lakh

c) Others (Specify)

i. Clearing Members

ii. NRI

Sub-total (B)(2):

Total Public
Shareholding

(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total(A+B+C)

2049999

2050000

100%

2049999

2050000

100%

Nil
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SL. No. Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning | Share holding at the end of the
Name of the year at 01.04.2021 Yearat 31.03.2022
No. of % of %of Shares |No. of % of %%of Shares %
Shares |total Pledged / |Shares total Pledged / Ehange in
Shares of |encumbere Shares of |encumbere [share holding
the d to total the dtototal |during the
company |shares company |shares year
1. Rayirth Holding and 2049999 100 0 2049999 100 0 0
Trading Company Private
Limited.
Mr. Malav A. Dani, 1 0 0 1 0 0 0
2. |(Nominee of Rayirth
Holding and Trading
Company Private Limited.)
Total 2050000 [100 0 2050000 |100 0 100
iii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change):
There is no change in the Promoter’s shareholding during the Financial Year 2021-22.
Sr Shareholders | Shareholding at the Date Reason | Increase/Decrease | Cumulative
No | Name beginning of the year as in Shareholding Shares during
on 01.04.2021 the year
No of % of total No of % of | No of % of
shares Shares shares | total shares | total
of the Shares Shares
Company of the of the
Company Compa
ny
1{ Rayirth 2049999 100 | 01.04.2021 | Opening -- -- |2049999 100
Holding and = No 5 = - £
Trading Change
Company 31.03.2022 | Atthe - - 2049999 100
Private sl of
e the
Limited. year
2| Mr. Malav A. i 0 | 01.04.2021 | Opening -- == 1 0
Dani, (Nominee - No -- - - -
of Rayirth Change
Holding and 31.03.2022 | At the - - 1 0
Trading end of
Company the year
Private
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&

| Limited.)

|

|

|

|

| |

l

iv.

ADRs): (There is no shareholders other than the promoters)

Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and

Sr | Shareholders | Shareholding at | Date | Reason | Increase /Decrease | Cumulative Shares
No | Name the beginning of in Shareholding during the year
the year as on
01.04.2021
Noof | % of Noof | % of | Noof | % oftotal
shares | total shares | total shares | Shares
Shares Shares of the
of the of the Company
Company Company
Atthe - - - - - - -
beginning of
the year
At the end of - - |- - - - -
the year
v. _Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sr | Name Directors/ Shareholding at | Date Reason Increase/Decreas | Cumulative —|
No | KMPs the beginning of e in Shareholding | Shares during the
the year as on year
1.4.2021
No % of Noof | % of | Noof | % of
of total share | total share | total
shar | Shares s Shares s Shares
es of the of the of the
Company Company Company
1. Mr. Malav A. Dani as 1 0 | 01.04.2021 | Opening - 1 0
a Nominee of Rayirth -- | No Change - - 5 2
Holding and Trading 31.03.2022 | Atthe end - - 1 0
Company Private. of the
Limited. year
2. | *Mr. Ashwin R. - | 01.04.2021 | Opening - . -
Nagarwadia - - - No Change - -
- | 31.03.2022 | At the end - -
of the
year
3. *Mr. Bomi P. Chinoy - 01.04.2021 | Opening -
- No Change - -
- |1 31.03.2022 | Atthe end - - - -
of the
Year
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- | 01.04.2021

Opening

No Change

4. *Mr. Percy |. Dajee

31.03.2022

At the end
of the
year

- 1 01.04.2021

Opening

No Change

B« *Mrs. Hetali H. Mehta

- | 31.03.2022

At the end
of the

year

*Mr. Ashwin R. Nagarwadia; Mr. Bomi P. Chinoy;

during the financial year 2021-22.

E. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits | Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of the

financial year

i. Principal Amount 115185.00 915.00 0 116100.00

ii. Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0

iii. Interest accrued but not due 3554.11 8.98 0 3563.09

Total (i+ii+iii) 119463.81 923.98 0 119663.81

Change in Indebtedness during the

financial year

¢ Addition - 750 0 750

e Reduction (47699) - 0 (47699)

Net Change (47699) 750 0 (46949)

Indebtedness at the end of the

financial year

i. Principal Amount 67700.00 1665.00 0 69365.00

ii. Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0

é,l [
e
\

\

Mr. Percy ). Dajee and Mrs. Hetali H. Mehta did not hold any shares of the Company
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iii. Interest accrued but not due 4064.81 77.94 0 4142.75
Total (i+ii+iii) 71764.81 1742.94 0 73507.75
F. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director/WTD/Manager:
Sr. | Particulars of Remuneration (Managing
No. Director/WTD/Manager)
Gross Salary
a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income | -
tax Act, 1961
b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income Tax Act, 1961 -
c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 -
Stock Option -
Sweat Equity -
Commission E
- As % of profit -
- Others, specify -
Others, please specify - Retirement Benefits -
Total -
Ceiling as per the Act Not Applicable
Remuneration to Directors: (Figures in Lakhs )
Particulars of Remuneration Particulars Total amount
Malav A. Dani | Ashwin R. | Bomi P. Chinoy
Nagarwadia
Fee for attending Board/Committee 1.65 0.9 1.65 4.2
Meetings
Commission - - - =
Others - . : .
Total (IT) - - - -
TOTAL B - - . 5
Total Managerial Remuneration
(A+B)
Ceiling Limit as per the NA
Companies Act, 2013

B. Remuneration of Other Key Managerial Personnel: (Figures in Lakhs)

Sr. no. | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO&CFO CS
15 Gross salary Mr. Percy Dajee Mrs. Hetali Mehta Mr. Mukesh Desai
(w.ef 1stMay, 2021) | (upto 30t April,
2021)
a. Salary as per provisions 14.63 7.64 1.45

37



SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

U65923MH2011PTC214070

TWELFTH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-2022

contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

b. Value of perquisites
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

u/s

c. Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income- tax

Act, 1961
2 Stock Option - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - -
4. Commission - - -
* As % of profit - - -
* Others, please specify R - -
5. Others- Retirement benefits = -

Total

14.63

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

There were no penalties / punishment / compounding of offences for breach of any section of
Companies Act against the Company or its Directors or other officers in default, if any, during the
financial year 2021-22.

Type Section of | Brief Details of Penalty/ | Authority ] Appeal
the Description | Punishment/ [RD/NCLT/Court] | made, if any
Companies Compounding Fees (give
Act imposed details)
A, Company
Penalty . - - - -
Punishment - . - - B
Compounding - - - - -
B.  Other Officers in Default
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - . - - -
C) Other officers in default
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
On behalf of the Board

For Sattva Holding and Trading Private Limited

Malav A. Dani

Director (DIN: 01184336)

Date: 13t September, 2022

Place: Mumbai

Viraf R. Mehta

Director (DIN: 00352598) i~
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ANNEXURE ‘D’

FORM AOC 2
(Pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related
parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms’ length transactions
under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm'’s length basis: NIL
a) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship -
b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/ transactions -
c) | Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions -
d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions -
including the value, if any
e) | Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or | -
transactions
f) | Date(s) of approval by the Board -
g) | Amount paid as advances, if any -
h) | Date on which (a) the special resolution was passed in general -
meeting as required under first proviso to Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: NIL

(a) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship -
(b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/ transactions -
() | Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions -
(d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or -
transactions including the value, if any
(e) | Date(s) of approval by the Board -
(f) | Amount paid as advances, if any -

On behalf of the Board
For Sattva Holding and Trading Private Limited

Malav A. Dani Viraf R. Mehta

Director (DIN: 01184336) Director (DIN: 00352598)
Place: Mumbai

Date: 13t September, 2022
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J. B. DUDHELA J . B. Dudhela & Co.

B.Com.F.C.A CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

ROOM NO. 1, BLDG. NO. 1, SINDHI COLONY,RAM NAGAR, NEAR KORA KENDRA, MUMBAI — 400092
TEL: (O): 28082624, (M) 9820123371. EMAIL ID: cajbdudhela@gmail.com

To,

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited,
Asian Building, Ground Floor,

17, R. Kamani Marg, Ballard Estate,
Mumbai - 400 001

Re: CERTIFICATE OF ENDUSE OF LOAN FACILITY

We have verified the Books of Accounts and the relevant records of Sattva Holding and
Trading Pvt. Ltd having Registered Office at 205, Welspun House, Kamla City , Senapati
Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai-400013 and according to the information and
explanation given to us and based on the records produced before us we confirm as
under:

1) The Company had issued Listed, Secured, non-convertible, redeemable bonds in
the nature of debentures (NCD) amounting to Rs. 98.00 Crores on a private
placement basis as per Information Memorandum (IM) dated 24t August 2021.

2) We certify that the funds availed on 26t August 2021 against the proceeds of NCD
by the Company have been utilized as per terms of the IM towards repayment of
existing loans of the Company.

3) This certificate is issued at the request of the Company for the purpose of
submitting to IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited.

For J.B.Dudhela& Co.

Chartered Accountants
Jayprakash zzzze—ere
Bhagwand = =

as Dudhela ===

J.B.Dudhela
Proprietor
Membership No.35354

UDIN No. : 21035354AAAAET4326
Place: Mumbai
Date : 15t September 2021
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ROOM NO. 1, BLDG. NO. 1, SINDHI COLONY ,RAM NAGAR, NEAR KORA KENDRA, MUMBALI - 400092
TEL: (O): 28082624, (M) 9820123371. EMAIL ID: cajbdudhela@gmail.com

To,

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited,
Asian Building, Ground Floor,

17, R. Kamani Marg, Ballard Estate,
Mumbai - 400 001

Re: CERTIFICATE OF ENDUSE OF LOAN FACILITY

We have verified the Books of Accounts and the relevant records of Sattva Holding and
Trading Pvt. Ltd having Registered Office at 205, Welspun House, Kamla City , Senapati
Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai-400013 and according to the information and
explanation given to us and based on the records produced before us we confirm as
under:

1) The Company had issued Listed, Secured, non-convertible, redeemable bonds in
the nature of debentures (NCD) amounting to Rs. 98.00 Crores on a private
placement basis as per Information Memorandum (IM) dated 29t july, 2022.

2) We certify that the funds availed on 02 August 2022 against the proceeds of NCD
by the Company have been utilized as per terms of the IM towards repayment of
existing loans of the Company.

3) This certificate is issued at the request of the Company for the purpose of
submitting to IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited.

For J.B.Dudhela& Co.
Chartered Accountants

Jayprakash Digitally signed by Jayprakash
Bhagwandas Dudhela
Bhagwandas Date: 2022.09.12 19:57:15
Dudhela +05'30'
J.B.Dudhela
Proprietor

Membership No.35354
UDIN No. : 22035354ARXGTM3131

Place: Mumbai
Date : 12th September 2022
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KHANDHAR
MEHTA &
SHAH

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of Sattva Holding and
Trading Private Limited {"the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022,
the Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive Income}, the Statement of Changes
in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes to the Standalene Ind AS
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information {(hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, {“Ind AS”} and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, the profit, total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143{10}) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {“ICAI”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone

financial statements. @/

3rd Floor, Devpath Complex,

B/h. Lal Bungalow, Off C.G. Road,

Navrangpura, Ahmedabad - 380 006.

Phone : +91 79 6631 5450/51/52 /53,
+91 79 2646 1526,

E-mail : kms@kmsindia.in




Key Audit Matters

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.
Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Directors report but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the other accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to

liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.



The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs, will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually




of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and {ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, inciuding any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
refated safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current year
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”}, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in Annexure ‘A’ a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained alf the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are
in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act.

{e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022, taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors of the Company is disqualified as on
March 31, 2022, from being appointed as a Director in terms of section 164(2}) of the Act.

g



(f}

{g)

(h)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in Annexure ‘B’.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Repart in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of
the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, we further report that:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  {a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 22{v) to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
{“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 22(vi) to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to



believe that the representations under sub-clause {i) and (ii} of Rule 11(e), as provided
under (a) and {b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v.  As per the information and explanations given 1o us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, no dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.
Accordingly, compliance with the provisions of Section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

For KHANDHAR MEHTA & SHAH
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Reg. No.: 12w

. Gautam Mehta “~~———="
Partner
M. No.: 112626

UDIN: 22112626AKJLMU1993

Date: May 24, 2022
Place: Ahmedabad



Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’'s Report

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
of our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on the standalone financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2022:

Statement on Matters Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2020

(i} (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.
(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b} The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment so as to
cover all the assets once ever. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company does not have any immovable property {other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

{(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company as
at March 31, 2022, for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
{Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The Company is involved in the business of rendering services. Accordingly, reporting in respect
of inventories under paragraph 3(ii){a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five
crore rupees, in aggregate, from the bank on the basis of security of current assets. In our
opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks are in
agreement with the books of account of the Company.

(iii) {a} According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has not made any investments during the year other than mutual fund
investments, nor has the Company provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability

Partnerships or any other parties during the year. W



(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, in our opinion the investments made during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial
to the interest of the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has neither provided any guarantee or security nor granted any loans
or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(iii)(b) to
paragraph 3(iii)({f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of investments made during the year. The Company has not granted any loans or
provided any guarantee or security and therefore, reporting under paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

{v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within
the meaning of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of sections 73 to 76 of
the Act, any other relevant provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed thereunder,
Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3({v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for any
of the services provided by the Company. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(vi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

{vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, in our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues as applicable to it, have been generally
regularly deposited by the Company with appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed dues which have remained outstanding as at the end of the financial year,
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b)According to the information and explanation given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, in our opinion, there are no statutory dues of Goods and Services Tax, provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues as applicable to it, which have not been deposited
on account of any disputes

(viii} According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, we have not come across any transactions not recorded in the books of account




which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

{ix) (a) tn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or in paymentlof interest thereon to any to banks,
financial institution and any lender. The Company not taken any loans or borrowings from
Government.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, we report that the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c} According to the information explanation given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the term loans were applied for purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d)According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e)According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds
from an any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary. The
Company does not have any associates or joint ventures.

(f)According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed by
us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiary, associate or joint venture company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company
During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or  convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally). Accordingly, reporting under
paragraph 3(x)(b} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

We have not come across any instance of material fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees during the course of audit of the financial statement for the year ended March 31,
2022. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3{xi}{b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.




(b) Asrepresented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

{xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, reporting under paragraphs 3(xii)(a) to {c} of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

{xiii) According to the information and explanations and records made available to us by the Company
and audit procedures performed by us, all transactions with related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed
in Note No. 10 to the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(xiv) {a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an adequate internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of business.

(b} We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
its directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi) (@) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is required to obtain the registration under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
and the necessary registration has been obtained.

(b} In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has obtained Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of India for conducting activities
relating to Non-Banking Financial activities.

{c) The Company is registered under section 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act 1934, as a
Systematically Important Non-Deposit Core Investment Company and continues to fulfill the
criteria of a Core Investment Company.

{xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the current financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been resignation of the statutory auditor during the year, pursuant to the Reserve
Bank of India (RBI) circular no. RBI/2021-22/25 Ref.No.DoS.CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/ 2021-22 dated
September 14, 2021, with respect to appointment of statutory auditors. There have been no issues,
objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditor.




{xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
financial ratios, ageing and expected date of realisation of financial assets and payment of liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company does not have any unspent amount for the year ended March 31, 2022
in respect of its obligation towards corporate social responsibility under section 135 of the Act.
Accordingly, reporting under paragraphs (xx)(a) to {b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For KHANDHAR MEHTA & SHAH
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Reg. No.: 125512W

.

CA. Gautam Mehta ™. .-
Partner
M. No.: 112626

UDIN: 22112626AKILMU1993

Date: May 24, 2022
Place: Ahmedabad




Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred to in Para 2 {f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of
our Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the Company on the standalone financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2022:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statements
of SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as at March 31, 2022 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financia! Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to standalone financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of india (‘ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
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evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to standalone
financial statements,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of out information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference
to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control
with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
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essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For KHANDHAR MEHTA & SHAH
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Reg. No.: 125512W

. Gautam Mehta-, |
Partner el
M. No.: 112626

UDIN: 22112626AKILMU1993

Date: May 24, 2022
Place: Ahmedabad







SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN. NO- U65923MH2011PTC214070

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

{Currency : INR in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. As at 31st March, 2022 As At 31st March, 2021
ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 31 1,013.36 3174
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 32 2.115.09 1,161.72
Investments 33 16,87.480.44 14,30,807.42
Other Financial assets 34 19.68 14,96
Non-financial Assets
Current tax assets (Net of provision for tax) 35 6.66 14.63
Property, Plant and Equipment 3.6 i 0.83
Right of use assets 37 20.69 46.18
Other intangible assets 38 0.15 0.09
Total 16,90,659.18 14,32,363.24
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 39
(i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises 0.54 6.79
(i1) total outstanding dues of creditors other
. , . 8.74 2713
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Debt Securities 310 33,731.93 22,148.52
Borrowings {Other than Debt Securities) 311 39,775.82 97,514.57
Other Financial Liabilities 312 21.63 48.71
73,538.66 1,19,721.32
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (Net) - -
Provisions 3.13 12.17 8.88
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 325 1,17,414.11 87,708.07
Other non-financial liabilities 314 72.86 119.27
1,17,499.14 87,836.22
Equity
Equity share capital 3.15 205.00 205.00
Other equity 316 14,99,416.38 12,24,600.70
Total 14,99,621.38 12,24,805.70
Total 16,90,659.18 14,32,363.24

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements - { to 32

As per our report attached
KHANDHAR MEHTA & SHAH

Chartered Accoyntants .
Registration No.: 12} éwl -

Membership No. 112626

Place: Mumbai
Date; 24th May, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

Mazlav A. Dani
Director
DIN: 01184336

‘?‘".,sﬁﬂ- ,

Percy Jal Dajce

Chief Executive Officer &
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai

Date: 24th May, 2022

e d

S { MUMBA} |

Director
DIN: 07519315

Hetali Mehta
Company Secretary




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN. NO- U65923MH2011PTC214070
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
(Currency: INR in Lakhs)

. For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Particulars Note No. March, 2022 March, 2021
Revenue from operations
Interest Income 317 67.67 125.06
Dividend Income 3.18 10,234.55 2,734.85
Net gain on fair value changes 319 216.53 -
Total Revenue from operations 10,518.75 2,859.91
Other Income 3.20 0.95 0.27

Total Income 10,519.70 2,860.18
Expenses
Finance Cost 321 7,683.46 10,200.61
Employee Benefits Expenses 322 78.08 70.66
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 323 18.31 21.51
Other expenses 324 56.92 46.65
Total Expenses 7,836.77 10,339.43
Profit Before Tax 2,682.93 (7.479.25)
Tax Expense:
Current Tax 2,099.65 550.65
Deferred Tax (0.11) (2.25)
Reversal of excess provision for carlicr years - {5.83
- 2,099.54 542.57
Profit After Tax A 583.38 (8,021.82)]
Qther Comprehensive Income
{A) (i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss :

- Changes in fair valuation of equity instruments 3,06,561.26 4,91,089.03

- Remeasurment loss on defined benefit plan (0.58)] (0.64)

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be 325

reclassified to profit or loss ' (32,328 42 (56,180.42)

2,74,232.26 4,34,907.97

{B) (i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss: - -
Other Comprehensive Income B 2,74,232.26 4,34,907.97
Total Comprehensive Income for the year {A+B) 2,74,815.64 4,26,886.15
Earnings per equity share
Basic (INR) 4 28.46 (391.31)
Diluted {INR) 2.65 (36.38)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements - 1 to 32
As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
KHANDHAR MEHTA & SHAH SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

Chartered Accounta
Registration No.: 1;

) W

Malav A. Dani

7

Périner R Director Director
Membership No. 112626 DIN: 01184336 DIN: 07519315
Place: Mumbai P . H'“ 1 Mﬂm '
Date: 24th May, 2022

Perey Jat Dajee Hetali Mehta

Chief Executive Officer & Company Secretary
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai

Date: 24th May, 2022




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN. NO- U65923MH2011PTC214070
STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022

{Currency: INR in Lakhs)

For the year ended 31st March, 2022 For the year ended 31st March, 2021

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES -

Net profit / {loss) before tax 2,682.92 {7,479.25)
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amoftization expense 1B.31 2151
Profit on sale of Investment (216.53)

Interest expense on lease liability 0.22 531
Amortisation of security deposits (1.34) (1.23)
Operating Profit / {Loss) before working capital changes 2,483.58 (7.453.66)

Adjustments for changes in :

Cther Financial Assets - {0.02)

Trade Payables (0.24) {1.52)

Provisions 27N 4.05

Profit on sate of investment -

Other Non Financial Liabilities {31.14) (52.85)

Cash Generated from / (used in) operations 243491 (7,511.00)

Income Tax Paid {4,743.21) (539.42)

Net Cash generated from / (used in} operating activities (2,308.30) (8,050.42)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES -

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment & intangibles (2327} (1.06)

Fixed deposits placed with bank undsr lien (948.64) (48.81)

Fixed deposits placed with bank - (5,062.87)

Proceeds from Maturity of Fixed deposits - 7,143 .45

Purchase of [nvestment -

Sale of Invesiment 50,104.76

Net Cash {used in} / generated from Investing Activities 49,132.85 2,030.72

C. CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES -

Proceeds from borrowings 56,05030 50,452.56
(Repayment) of borrowings {1,02,267.09) (45,485.43)
Cash payments for the principal porlion of the lease liabtity 2708 (18.69)
Cash payments for the interest partion of the lease liability 1.11 (531}
Net Cash (wsed in) / generated from Financing Activities (46,128.60) 4,943.53
Net Increase / {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 695.95 {1,076.17)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 3174t 1,393.58
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period 1,013.36 31741
Naotes:
| Cash and Cash equivalents comprises of :
Cash in hand 010 005
Balances with banks - in current accounts 10.74 31736
Bank deposits with maturity less than three months . 1,002.52 -
1,013.36 317.41

2 The above statement of cash [lows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in Ind AS 7 - "Statement of Cash Flows".

3 Since the Company is registered as Non-Banking Financial Company- Core Invesiment Company- Non Deposit taking - Systemically Important (NBFC-CIC-ND-51),
purchase and sale of investments have been considered as part of 'Cash flow from investing activities' and finance cost of INR 7,683.46 lakhs (previous Year ended
10,200.61 lakhs), interest income - INR 67.66 lakhs (previous Year ended : 125.06 lakhs) and dividend eamed of INR 10,234.55 lakhs (previous Year ended :
2,734.85 lakhs) have been considered as part of "Cash low from operating activities'

4 Direct taxes paid is ireated as arising from operating activities and is not bifurcated between investing and financing activities.
S Figures in brackets are outflows/ deductions. Previous year's figures have been regrouped, wherever necessary.

As per our report attached
KHANDHAR MEH A & For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Szttva Holding and Trading Private Limited

y Malav A. Dani oy
- Lo Director Director
Membership Mo. 112626 DIN: 01184336 DIN: 07519315
Pd. MeH: Meld
Perfy Jzl Daj Hetali Mehta
Place: Mumbai Chief Executive Officer & Company Secrelary

Date: 24th May, 2022 Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24th May, 2022




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH , 2022.

(Currency: INR in Lakhs)

A. Equity Share Capital (Refer Note 3.15)

Balance as at 31st Mar 2022

Balance at the beginning of the current
reporting period

Changes in Equity
Share Capital due
to prior period
errors

Restated balance at
the beginning of the
current reporting
period

Changes in equity
share capital during
the current year

Balance at the end
of the current
reporting period

205.00

205.00

Balance as at 31st Mar 2021

Balance at the beginning of the current
reporting period

Changes in Equity
Share Capital due

Restated balance at
the beginning of the

Changes in equity
share capital during

Balance at the end
of the current

to prior period current reporting the current year reporting period
errors period
205.00 - - - 205.00
B. Other Equity (Refer Note 3.16)
Balance as at 31st Mar 2022
Reserves and Surplus Total
Statutory Reserve |Retained Earnings Equity Instruments
through Other
Comprehensive
Income
Balance at the beginning of the current reporting 678.13 (13,557.12) 12,37,479.69 12,24,600.70
Jperiod
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors - - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current - - -
reporting period
Total Comprehensive Income for the current year - 2.74,232.34 2,74,232.34
Dividends - - - -
Transfer to reserves - (8,970.71) - (8,970.71)
Any other change (to be specified) 8,970.71 583.38 (44,270.18) (34,716.09)
Profit on sale of Investment - 44,270.14 - 44,270.14
Balance at the end of the current reporting period 9,648.84 22,325.70 14,67.441.85 14,69.416.38
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Balance as at 31s¢ Mar 2021

Reserves and Surplus Total
Statutory Reserve [Retained Earnings Equity Instruments
through Other
Comprehensive
Income
Balance at the beginning of the current reporting 678.13 (5,534.82) 8,02,571.24 7,97,714.55
period
[Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors - - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current - - - -
Jreporting period
Total Comprehensive Income for the current year - (0.48) 4,34,908.45 4,34,907.97
Dividends - - - -
Transfer to retained earnings - {8,021.82) - (8,021.82)
Any other change (to be sp-eciﬂed) - - -
Balance at the end of the current reporting period 678.13 (13,557.12) 12,37,479.69 12,24,600.70

As per our report attached

KHANDHAR MEHTA & SHAH

Chartered Accountants

Registration No.{ | i25
]

Place; Mumbai
Date: 24th May, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements - 1 to 32

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

Malav A. Dani
Director
DIN: 01184336

Py opo

Percy Jal Dajee
Chief Executive Officer &
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24th May, 2022

Bomi P. Chinoy
Director
DIN: 07519315

s

Hetali Mehta
Company Secretary
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SATTYA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022.

Background Information

Sattva Holding and Trading Private Limited (the “Company”) (formerly Isis Holding and Trading Company Private Limited) is a private
limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companics Act, 1956 with its registered office in
Mumbai, Maharashtra india. the Company changed its name during the year ending 31st March, 2018 after obtaining necessary approvals
from the Registrar of Companies. the Company has been registered as Non-Banking Financial Company- Core Investment Company- Non
Deposit taking — Systemically Important (NBFC-CIC-ND-SI} with Rescrve Bank of India (RBI) on 21st June 2019. the Company is
engaged in the business of investments in shares and securities.

the Company has become Debt listed effective 5th February, 2020 consequent to issuance of Secured Rated Listed Redeemable
Transferable Non - Convertible Debentures through private placement.

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is the Indian Rupee which is the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Company operates.

Mefiee LLP is the ultimate parent of the Company and Rayirth Holding and Trading Company Private Limited is the Holding Company.
Information on other related party relationships of the Company is provided in Note 10.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st Mar , 2022 were approved and authorised for issue by Board of
Directors on 24th May 2022,

Significant accounting policies followed by the Company
The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below.

Basis of preparation :

(i) Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to
as the 'Ind AS") as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuani to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) read with of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. The accounting policies are
applied consistently to all the years presented in the financial statements.

(ii) Basis of preparation and presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period as explained in accounting policies below.

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or setilement within 12 months after the
reporting date (current} and more than 12 months after the reporting date {non~—current) is presented in Note 11.

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule
Ii1, unless otherwise stated.

(iii} Significant accounting judgemcnts, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requites management of
the Company to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures including
disclosures of contingent assets and contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the period. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions arc reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in future periods
which are affected.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements which may cause a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year is in respect of:

- recognition of deferred tax assets;

- measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

- Financial instruments — Fair values, risk management and impajrment of financial assets

- estimates of useful lives and residual value of Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Intangible Assets




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022.

- recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies; key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow
of resources, if any.

- impairment test of non-financial assets: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts including the recoverability of expenditure
on intangible assets;

(iv) Fair value measurements

When the fair value of financial assets or financial liabilities recorded or disclosed in the financial statements cannot be measured at the
quoted price in the active markets, their fair value is measured using the valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is
required in establishing fair values, judgments includes consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk , credit risk and volatility.

b) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

¢)  Financial Instruments
(i) Classification

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and financial liability or equity instruments of
another entity.

Financial assets, other than cquity, are classified into financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair
value through profit and loss account (FVTPL) or at amortised cost. Financial assets that are equity instruments are classified as FVTPL
or FVOCL. Financiat liabilities are classified as amortised cost category and FVTPL.

Business Model assessment and Solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) test:

Classification and measurement of financial asscts depends on the business mode! and results of SPPI test. the Company determines the
business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This
assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including;

- how the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to the
entity’s key management personnel;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and, in particular,
the way in which those risks are managed; and

- how managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed
or on the contractual cash flows collected).

(ii) Initial recognition
The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business model for managing
the instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financiat assets and financial liabilities at (FVTPL) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financia liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the Statement of

profit and loss. PP e
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SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 315t March, 2022.

(iii) Subsequent measurement
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) if these financial asscts are held within
a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.
The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in

the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Equity Instruments at FVOCI

The Company’s management has elected to classify irrevocably some of its equity investments as equity instruments at FVOCI, when
such instruments meet the definition of Equity under Ind AS 32 'Financial Instruments: Presentation’ and are not held for trading.

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends from these equity investments are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss when the right to receive the payment has been estabilished.

Financial assets at Fair value through Profit and loss

Financial assets are measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FYOCI on initial recognition. The transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities and equity instruments
Ciassification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expensc and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised as
profit or loss respectively.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Other Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant. For trade and other payables maturing within one year
from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximates the fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

(iv) Derecognition of Financial assets and Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only wher, the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

(v) Impairment of financial instruments

i ce for expected credit tosses on a financial asset that is at amortized cost or fair value through
Ngssets is measured at an amount equal to life time expected credit losses and is calculated as
ind the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the original effective

The Company recognizes a loss allow

interest rate.




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022.

{vi) Reclassification of Financial assets

d)

€)

g)

The Company does not re-classify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances
when the Company changes its business model for managing such financial assets. the Company does not re-classify its financial
liabilities.

Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price (fair value of the consideration given or
received). Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company determines the fair value of financial instruments that are quoted in active
markets using the quoted bid prices (financial assets held) or quoted ask prices {financial liabilities held) and using valuation techniques
for other instruments. Valuation techniques include discounted cash flow method and other valuation models.

Investment in subsidiaries
The Company has chosen to carry the investments in subsidiaries at cost less impairment, if any.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

The management of the Company has determined Indian Rupee (“INR”) as the functional currency of the Company. In preparing the
financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the date of the transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at
the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are re-translated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measuted in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

Exchange differences arising out of these translations are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Intangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation / amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all expenses incidental to the acquisition of the property, plant and equipment and
any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Subsequent costs are capitalised only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Capital work in progress and Capital advances
Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the Balance Sheet date, is shown as capital work in progress. Advances given towards
acquisition of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are disclosed in Other

Non-Financial Assets.

Depreciation of property plant and equipment

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on written down value basis as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 of
the Companies Act, 2013, taking residual value as Re.l/-, Further, assets individually costing INR 5,000/ or less are fully depreciated in

the year of purchase.

Nature of property, plant and equipment Useful life in years
Office Equipment 5 years
Computer 3 years

The Company provides pro-rata depreciation from the date the asset is ready for its intended use and in respect of assets sold, depreciation
is provided upto the date of disposal.

§rand method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at end of each
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SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022.

Amortisation of other intangible assets

Intangible assets comprising of software purchased are amortized on a written down value over the useful life of the software commencing
from the year in which such software is first ready for its intended use. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Derecognition of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from its continuous use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in other income / expense in the statement of profit and loss in the
year the asset is derecognised. The date of disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets is the date the
recipient obtains control of that item in accordance with the requirements for determining when a performance obligation is satisfied in
Ind AS 115.

Leases

the Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of lease for office premises. the Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease
at the inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether : (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset; (i) the Company has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease, and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding lease liability for all
lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and low-value leases. For
these short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease
liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives, They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment Josses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost
to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the assct does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country
of domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Group
changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability has been included under 'Other Financial Liabilities in the Balance Sheet and ROU asset have been separately presented in
the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Impairment of non - financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. [f any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.
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SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. When the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations
are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The impairment foss, if any,
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which impairment takes place.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, however subject to the increased carrying amount not exceeding
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior accounting periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Revenue recognition

(i) Interest Income or interest expense

Under Ind AS 109 interest income or expense is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial instruments
measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the expected life
of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In caleulating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not
credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to
initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the
asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

(ii} Dividend income

Dividend income (including from FVOCI investments) is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably. This is generally when the shareholders approve the dividend.

(iii) Gain and loss from financial instruments

k)

The realised gains / losses from financial instruments at FVTPL represents the difference between the carrying amount of a financial
instrument at the beginning of the reporting period, or the transaction price if it was purchased in the current reporting period, and its
settlement price.

The unrealised gains / losses represents the difference between the carrying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the
period, or the transaction price if it was purchased in the current reporting period, and its carrying amount at the end of the reporting

period.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. The
undiscounted amount of shori-term g¢ beriéfits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is

recognised during the year. Ex




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022.

(ii} Post Employment Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans

the Company’s state governed provident fund scheme and employee pension scheme are defined contribution plans. The contribution
paid/ payable under the schemes is recognised duting the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. the Company’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of plan assets, if any, is deducted from such determined present
value,

The discount rate used for determining the present value is based on the Indian Government Securitics yields prevailing as at the balance
sheet date that have maturity date equivalent to the tenure of the obligation.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuations
being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit plans, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets in excess of what
has been estimated and the effect of the asset ceiling, if any, in case of over funded plans are recognised immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained carings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. All other
expenses related to defined benefit plans is recognised in employee benefit expenses in statement of profit and loss. Remeasurements are
not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

When the benefits of the plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed or settlement occurs, the portion of the changed benefit related to
past service by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment or settlement, is recognized immediately in the profit or loss account when
the plan amendment or when a curtailment or settlement occurs.

(i} Other Long term Benefits - Compensated absences

m)

Compensated absences are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date. the
Company’s liability towards compensated absences is determined on the basis of valuations, as at balance sheet date, carried out by an
independent actuary using Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of
changes in actuarial assumptions and are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the cffective interest method.

Borrowing costs net of any investment income from the temporary investment of related borrowings, that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for
its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Accounting for provisions contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can be reliably estimated. Each
provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. Where the time
value of money is material, the amo ovision shall be the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the

obligation.
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SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022,

Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders by weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the reporting period.

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity
shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. In computing diluted earnings per share, only
potential equity shares that are dilutive are included.

Dividends on ordinary shares

the Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is authorised and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the Companies Act, 2013, a final dividend is authorised when it is
approved by the shareholders in the annual general meeting, A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Segment reporting

the Company is primarily engaged in the business of investment in Companies including group companies. As such the Company's
financial statements are largely reflective of the investment business and there is no separate reportable segment. Pursuant to Ind AS 108 -
Operating Segments, no segment disclosure has been made in these financial statements as the Company has only one geographical
segment and no other separate reportable business segment.
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SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022,

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. the Company does not recognise contingent
asset,

Provisions, contingent assets, contingent liabilities and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
Taxation

Income tax expense comprises both current and deferred tax. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the statement of profit and loss
except when they relate to items credited or debited either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity in which case the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid to, the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the
reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income
or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022,

(Currency: INR in Lakhs)

As at 31st March, As At 31st March,
2022 2021
3.1 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.10 0.05
Balances with Banks
- in current accounts 10.74 317.36
Bank deposits with maturity less than three months 1,002.52 -
Total 1,013.36 374
3.2 Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Bank deposits with maturity more than 3 months 1,506.13 570.62
Fixed Deposit under lien with bank * 608.96 591.1¢
Total 2,115.09 1,161.72

* Fixed deposit amouting to Rs. 608.96 lakhs (PY 591.11 lakhs) under lien is towards overdraft facility issued by the bank.
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SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022,

{Currency: INR in Lakhs)

3.3 Investments

Investments Amortised cost At Fair Value
Designated at
Through Dﬂ_‘" Through profit fair value Others * Total
comprehensive
h or loss through profit
income
or loss
As at 31st March, 2022
Investments
Equity instruments
Subsidiary - Canes Venatici Trading - - - - 100 L.00
Private Limited
Others - Asian Paints Limited 16,87,479.44 - 16,87,479.44
Tatal - 16,87,479.44 - - 1.00 16,87,480.44
(i) Investments outside India - - . - - -
(ii} Investments in India - 16,87.479.44 - - 1.00 16,87,480.44
Total - 16,87,479.44 - - 1.00, 16,87,480.44
* Investment - others comprise of investment in subsidiary which is held at cost. )
AS AT 31st MARCH, 1021
Investments
Equity instruments
Subsidiary - Canes Venatici Trading
Private Limited B _ _ i 1.00 1.00
Others - Asian Paints Limited - 14,30,806.42 - - - 14,30,806.42
Total - 14,30,806.42 - - 1.00 14,30,807.42
(i) Investments outside india - - - - - -
(ii) Investments in India - 14,30,806.42 - - 1.00/ 14,30,807.42
Total - 14,30,806.42 -] - 1.00 14,30,307.42
* [nvestment - others comprise of investment in subsidiary which is held at cost.
Breakup of In s is as under
Ag at 31st March, 2022 As At 31st March, 2021
No. of shares / No. of shares /
units Cost Fair Yalue units Cost Fair Value
Equity instruments
Subsidiary - Canes Venatici Trading
Private Limited (FY INR 10/}
10,000 1.00 1.00 10,000 1.00 1.00
Others - Agian Paints Limited (FV
INR 1/~} 5,47,89,183 1,02,618.71 16,87,479.44 5,63,88.682 1,05,614.53 14,30,806.42
Total 1,02,619.71 16,87,480.44 1,05,615.53 14,30,807.42

Investments pledged against Borrowings
Of the above investments, 1,15,00,500 shares (31.March.2021 : 1,82,24,500 shares) of Asian Paints Limited are pledged against borrowings.

Investment in Equity i ignated at Gair value mprehensive incom

The Company has elected 1o designate the investment in equity shares, which are neither held for trading nor received as contingent consideration in business|
combination, at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYQCT), The Company chose the option of designating these investments to be recognised as|
FVOCI, as these equity instruments are not held for trading and management has elected to classify the same irevacably as equity instruments at FYOCL

Reclassification
During the current or previous reporting periods the company has not reclassified any investments since its initial classification.

The Company has not transferred any Financial assets which are transferred but are not derecognised in books of accounts.

More information regarding the valuation methodologies can be found in Note 12.
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SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022,

(Currency: INR in Lakhs)

As at 31st As At st
March, 2022 March, 2021
34 Other Financial Assets
Unsecured - considered good
Security deposits 19.23 14.93
Recoverable from Holding Company - 0.02
Prepaid Expense 0.45 -
Total 19.68 14.96
3.5 Current tax assets (Net of provision for tax)
Advance Payment of Taxes {net of provision Rs. 5,272.25
lakhs & Previous year 550.00 lakhs) 6.66 14.63
Total 6.66 14.63
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SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022.

(Currency: INR in Lakhs)

3.6 Property, Plant and Equipment

Description Office Computers Total
Equipments
I. Gross Block
Balance as at March 31, 2020 1.11 1.67 2.78
Additions - 1.06 1.06
Disposals - - -
Balance as at March 11, 2021 1.11 2.73 3.84
Additions 0.10 3.78 3.88
Disposals - - -
Balance as at March 31st, 2022 1.21 6.51 7.72

IL. Accumulated Depreciation and impairment

Balance as at March 31, 2020 1.00 1.45 245
Depreciation for the year 0.10 0.46 0.56
Eliminated on disposal of assets - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 1.10 1.91 3.01
Depreciation for the year 0.01 1.59 1.60
Eliminated on disposal of assets
Balance as at March 31st, 2022 1.11 3.50 4.61

IIL. Net block (I-IT)

Balance as at March 31st, 2022 0.10 3.01 3.11

Balance as at March 31st, 2021 0.01 0.82 0.83

3.7 Right of use assets

Description Office premises Total
I. Gross Block

Balance as at March 31, 2020 102.63 102.63
Additions - -

Disposals - -

Balance as at March 31, 2021 102.63 102.63
Additions

Disposals 8.94 8.94
Balance as at March 31st, 2022 93.69 93.69

11. Accumulated Depreciation and impairment

Balance as at March 31, 2020 35.92 35.92
Depreciation for the year 20.53 20.53
Eliminated on disposal of assets - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 56.45 56.45
Depreciation for the year 16.55 16.55
Eliminated on disposal of assets - -
Balance as at March 31s¢, 2022 73.00 73.00

IIL. Net block (I-1T)

Balance as at March 31st, 2022 20.69
Balance as at March 31, 2021 46.18




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022.

(Currency: INR in Lakhs)

Balance as at March 31, 2021

3.8 Other Intangible assets
Description Software Total
L. Gross Block
Balance as at March 31, 2020 1.65 1.65
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 1.65 1.65
Additions 0.21 0.21
Disposals
Balance as at March 31st, 2022 1.86 1.86
IL Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at March 31, 2020 1.14 1.14
Amortisation charge for the year 0.42 0.42
Eliminated on disposal of assets - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 1.56 1.56
Amortisation charge for the year 0.15 0.15
Eliminated on disposal of assets
Balance as at March 31st, 2022 1.71 1.71
111 Net block (I-1I)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 0.15 0.15
0.09 0.09




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Faor the year ended 315t March, 2022,

{Currency : INR in Lakhs)

As at 31st March, As At 31st March,
2022 2021
3.9 Trade Payables
(i) tur.al.uutstandmg dues of micro enterprises and small 0.54 6.79
enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
. ) 8.74 273
enterprises and small enterprises
Total 9.28 9.52

Micro, Smeall and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006’ (MSMED), This has been relied upon by the auditors.

not discounted and the carrying values are assumed to approximate their fair values.

Trade Payables ageing schedule; As at 31st March,2022
Outstanding unbilled for following perieds from due date of payment

Disclosure of amounts due to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises is based on information available with the Company regarding the status of the suppliers as defined under “The

Trade payables are recognised at their original invoice amounts which represents their fair values on initial recognition. Trade payables are considered to be of short duration and are

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
|¢) MSME 0.54 - - - 0.54
liii) Others 8.4 B - - 8.74
liiiiy Disputed dues- MSME - - N - -
[(v) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
Trade Payables ageing schedule: As at 31st March,2021

Qutstanding unbilled for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
1(i) MSME 6.79 - - - 6.79
(i) Others 2.73 - - - 2.73

(iii)} Disputed dues- MSME - R

(iv) Disputed dues - Others - -

3.10  Debt Securities

At Amortised cost (In India) As at 31st March, As At st March,
2022 2021

Unsecured: 20,00,000 Optionally Fully Convertible

Debentures {(OFCD) of INR 10/- each (Refer Note (a) below) 200.00 200.00

Secured: 198 Listed Non-Convertible, Redeemeable

Debentures of INR Lcr each, issued at par (Refer Note (b) 23,381.26 21,948,52

below) '

Secured: 980 Listed Non-Convertible, Redeemable

Debentures of INR 10 lakhs each, issued at par (Refer Note 10,150.67 -

(C) below)

Total 33,731.93 22,148.52

Note :

(a} Unsecured: 20,00,000 Optionally Fully Convertible Debentures (OFCD) of INR 10/- each.
These Debentures are issued to the ultimate holding company ‘Mefree LLP

The issue of OFCD were subject to the following conditions -
. The holders of the OFCDs {“OFCD Holders™) shall not be entitled to any interest.
ii. The OFCD Holders shall have an option, exercisable at any time from the date of subscription by the Invester to the OFCDs (“Subscription Date™), to convert
the entire OFCDs into equity shares of the Company.
The OFCDs shall be conventible into such numbser of equity shares of the Company as would result in the OFCD Holders holding. in the aggregate, 90.703%
{Ninety Point Seven Zero Percent) of the entire issued and paid up share capital of the Company.

iv. The equity shares of the Company allotted to the OFCD Holders on conversion of the OFCDs shall rank pari passu with, and shall have the same rights, as the

existing equity shares of the Company.
v, The QFCDs shall be freely translerrable to any third party subject to applicable law and in compliance with all applicable rules and regulations then in force.




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022.

(Currency : INR iu Lakhs)

vi. The Company shall have the option, exercisable at any time between the 9th (ninth) anniversary of the Subscription Date and the 1 1th {eleventh) anniversary of
the Subscription Date, to redeem the entire amount, but not a part of the OFCDs.

Any OFCDs which are neither been redeemed nor converted and which are outstanding as at the 11th (eleventh) anniversary of the Subscription Date of 14th
September, 2012 shall be mandatorily redeemed by the Company.

Upon conversion of the OFCDs in accordance with the terms hereaf, the Company shall detiver to the Investor, share certificates representing the equity shares
resulting from the conversion of the OFCDs (“Conversion Shares™). The Conversion Shares when issued and allotted in accordance with the terms of Subscription
Agreement entered into between the Company and the Investor, will be (i) duly and validly issued and allotted as fully paid in compliance with the applicable law;
and (ii) free of any and all encumbrances of any nature whatsoever. Any stamp duty or fee payable on the issuance of such Conversion Shares shall be borne by

¥ii,

viil.

the Company.

(b) Secured: 198 Listed Non-Converfible, Redeemable Debentures of INR lcr each, issued at par.

Security Name
Mode of Issue
Debenture Trustee
Put/Call Option date

Issuance mode of the instrument
Stock Exchange on which the NCDs are [isted
Security provided to NCD holders

Tenor / Maturity Date

Interest Range( Yield/Redemption Premium) :

Yield Type / Redemption Premium :
Yield/Redemption Premium (Payment Dates) :

Zero Coupon Sattva Listed Secured NCD 2023

ICICi Prudential AMC (Private Placement)

IDBI Trusteeship Services Lid

At the end of ! year and 2 years from the Deemed Date of Allotment by giving atleast 30 days prior
notice

Demat

BSE

No. of shares of Asian Paints Limited pledged such that the daily security cover provided is atleast
4X

[49,34,000 pledged as on 315t March 2022, 59,37,000 pledged as on 31st March 2021 ]

36 (Thirty Six) months bullet from Deemed Date of Allotment i.c. 3rd Feb, 2023. As per the terms
of issue, the Company shall ensure that at least 10 {Ten) calendar days prior to the scheduled
Maturity Date or relevant Put / Call Option Date, as the case may be, the Company funds the
Designated Account, with the Redemption Amount which is due and payable to the Debenture
Holdets on the Maturity Date or relevant Put / Call Option Date, as the case may be. Issuer shall
have the option to prepay the outstanding NCDs anytime thereafter prior to a redemption date
without any ptepayment premium being levied.

6.35% p.a. from 04th Feb, 2022 till maturity {7.00% p.a from 5th Feb 2021 to 03rd Feb, 2022 &
9.5% p.a. from G5th Feb, 2020 to 04th Feb 2021.)

FIXED
Payable on Maturity Date or Put / Call Option Date (as applicable}

{C) Secured: 980 Listed Non-Convertible, Redeemable Debentures of INR 10 1akh each, issued at par.

Security Name
Mode of Issue
Debenture Trustee
Put/Call Option date

Issuance mode of the instrument
Stock Exchange on which the NCDs are listed
Secyrity provided to NCD holders

Tenor / Maturity Date

Interest Range( Yield/Redemption Premiumy) :

Zero Coupon Sartva Listed Secured NCD 2026
ECICI Prudential AMC (Private Placement)

IDBI Trusteeship Services Ltd
At the end of 1 year, 2 years, 3 years and 4 years from the Deemed Date (26th Aug, 2021) of
Allotment by giving atleast 30 days prior notice

Demat

BSE

No. of shares of Asian Paints Limited pledged such that the daily security cover provided is atleast
4X

[21,78,000 shares of APL pledged as on 31.03.2022}

60 (Sixty) months bullet from Deemed Date of Allotment i.e. 28th August, 2026.

As per the terms of issue, the Company shall ensure that at least 10 (Ten) calendar days prior to the
scheduled Maturity Date or relevant Put / Call Option Date, as the case may be, the Company funds
the Designated Account, with the Redemption Amount which is due and payable to the Debenture
Holders on the Maturity Date or relevant Put / Call Option Date, as the case may be. Issuer shall
have the option te prepay the outstanding NCDs anytime thereafter priof to a redemption date
without any prepayment premium being levied.

6.25% p.a. (w.e.f26th Aug 2021).

Yield Type / Redemption Premium : FIXED
) . , ) Payable on Maturity Date or Put / Call Option
Yle]dmedemptloz,%:mmﬁggl%!}:lem Dates) : Date (as applicable)
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SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022,

(Curreney : INR in Lakhs)
3.11 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) As at 31st March, As At 31st March,
2022 2021
At Amortised cost (Secured - In India)
a} Term Loans
(i) from banks - -
(ii) from financial institutions (Refer note (a) below) 38,232.88 96,789.82
b) Bank Overdraft (Refer note (c) below) - 0.77
At Amortised cost (Unsecured - In India)
(i) from Director (Refer note (b) below) 1,542,94 723.98
Total 39,775.82 97,514.57

a) Loans from Financial Institutions:

i) Borrowings from Financial Institutions carry interest rate of 6.75% p-a. to 7.30% p.a. and are repayable within | to 3 years from date of disbursement, certain

loans have a call/put option exercisable at the end of 3/6/9/12 months.
ii} There were no continuing default as on the balance sheet date in repayment of loans and interest.

it} The long term borrowings are secured by pledging 43,88,500 (1,22,87,500 shares as on 31st March 2021) shares of Asian Paints Limited.

b) Loan from Director carries an interest rate of 6,50% to 7% p.a. and are repayable at the end of 3 years. There has

been no default in repayment of principal and interest.

¢) The overdraft facility from a Bank carries interest rate of approx. 5.38% p.a.(5.85% p.a. as on 31st March 2021) and is secured against the fixed deposits kept

with Bank,
3.12 Other Financial Liabilities As at 315t March, As At 31st March,
2022 2021
Lease Liability 21.63 48.71
Total 21.63 48,71
3.13 Provisions
Provisions for employee benefits (unfunded)
Provision for gratuity (refer note 9} 6.08 4.29
Pravision for compensated absences (refer note 9) 6.09 4.59
Total 12.17 8.88
3.14 Other Non-Financial Liabilities
Statutory liabilities 70.27 116.85
Emplovee related expenses payable 2.59 2.43
Total T2.86 119.27
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SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022.

3.15 Equity share capital

(Currency: INR in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2022 As At 31st March, 2021
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Authorised Capital
Equity Shares of par value INR [0/- each 20,50,000 205.00 203,50,000 205.00
Redeemable Preference Shares of INR 1(/- each 1,000,000 10,00 1,040,000 10.00
Unclassified shares of INR 10/- each 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00
22,00,000 220.00 22,00,000 220,00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity Shares of par value INR 10/~ each fully paid up 20,50,000 205.00 20,50,000 205.00
20,50,000 205.00 20,50,000 205.00
{a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Particulars No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 20,50,000 205.00 20,50,000 205.00
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
Quistanding at the end of the year 20,50,000 205.00 20,50,000 205.00

of capital:

equity shares held by the shareholders.

(¢) Shares held by holding company:

(b} Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment

The Company has only issued one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10/~ per share. Each hoider of equity shares is entitled to one vote per|
share. The Company has not declared any dividend during the year. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be|
entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of]

its nominees

Particulars Name & Nature of Relationship As at 31st As At 31t
March, 2022 March, 2021
Amount Amount
Rayirth Holding and Trading Company Private Limited and Holding Compan;
i & & pany € pany 205.00 205.00

(d) Details of the Shareholders holding more than § % of the shares in the Company:

Particulars As at 31st March, 2022 As At 31st March, 2021
No. of Shares No. of Shares
o, H 0, 8
% of Holding held % of Holding held
Equity Shares
Rayirth Holding and Trading Company Private Limited and
its nominees 100.00 20,50,000 100.00 20,50,000

amounts - NIL

{iii) Aggregate number and class of shares bought back - NIL

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31st March 2022

{N) For the period of five years immediately preceding the date at which the Balance Sheet is prepared:
(i} Aggrepate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash - NIL;
(ii) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares - NIL; and

(e} Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares or disinvestment, including the terms and

8r. No. |[Promoter Name

No. of Shares

% of total
shares

% Change during
the year

1 Rayirth Holding and Trading Company Private Limited

2049999 100%

Malav Dani (as nominee of Rayirth Holding and Trading
Company Private Limit_gg;

1 0%




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022,

{Currency: INR in Lakhs)

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31st March 2021

Sr. No. [Promoter Name No. of Shares %o of total % Change during
shares the year
1 Rayirth Holding and Trading Company Private Limited 2049999 100% -
2 Malav Dani (as nominee of Rayirth Holding and Trading 1 0%
Company Private Limited) ° 3
3.16 Other Equity
Particulars As at 31st As At I1st
March, 2022 March, 2021
Statutory Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 678.13 678.13
Add: Transfered during the year 8,970.71 -
Balance at the end of the year 9,648.84 678.13
Retnim;d Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (13,556.64) {5,534.82)
Add: Net profit for the year . 583.38 {8,021.82)
Add: Realised profit on sale of investments transferred from Other Comprehensive Income 44,270.14 -
Less: Statutory Reserve as per Section 45-IC of RBI Act, 1934 (8,970.71) -
Balance at the end of the year 22,326.18 (13,556.64)
Other comprebensive income
Balance at the beginning of the year 12,37,479.70 8,02,571.25
Add: other comprehensive income for the year 2.74,231.84 4,34 908.45
Less: Realised profit on sale of investments transferred to Retained Eamnings (44,270.18) -
Balance at the end of the year 14,67,441,36 12,37,479.70
14,99,416.38 12,24,600.70

Nature of reserves
a) Statutory Reserve
It represent reserve created under Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, as amended by RBI (Amendment) Act, 1997, whereby every
non banking financial company is required to transfer a sum of not less than 20% of its net profit every year as disclosed in the stalement of profit and|
{oss to statutory reserve.

b) Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has eamed till date, less any lransfers to statutory reserve as per Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank
of India Act. 1935.

¢} Equity instrument through other eomprehensive income
The Company has elecied 10 recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in other comprehensive income. These]
changes are accumulated within the FVOCT equity investments reserve within equity. The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained
eamings when the relevant equity securities are derecognised.
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SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022.

(Currency : INR in Lakhs)

For the year

For the year

ended 31st March, | ended 31st March,
2022 2021
3.17 Interest Income
Interest income on financial asset measured at amortised cost
- Interest on deposits with banks 66.33 123.83
- Interest on security deposits 1.34 1.23
Total . 67.67 125.06
3.18 Dividend Income
Dividend on investments - Equity Shares 10,234.55 2,734.85
Total 10,234.55 2,734.85
3.19 Net gain / (loss) on fair value changes
Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(i) On trading portfolio (Mutual Fund) 216.53 -
(ii} On financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss - -
Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 216.53 -
Fair Value changes:
-Realised 216.53 -
-Unrealised (loss}/ gain - -
Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 216.53 -
3.20 Other Income
Interest on Income Tax refund 0.95 0.27
Total 0.95 0.27

.




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022.

(Currency : INR in Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

3.21 Finance Cost

Interest on borrowings 5,883.54 8,273.84
Interest on overdraft taken from bank 2.43 5.05
Interest oh debt securities 1,797.24 1,916.40
Interest Expense on lease liability 0.22 5.31
Interest on delay in payment of taxes 0.03 0.01
Total 7.683.46 10,200.61

3.22 Employee benefits expenses

Salaries, wages & bonus 75.01 67.55
Gratuity expenses 1.52 0.97
Compensated absences expenses 1.50| 2.13
Staff welfare expenses 0.05 0.01
Total 78.08 70.66]

3.23 Depreciation, amortization and impairment

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 1.61 0.56
Amortisation on intangible assets 0.15 0.42
Depreciation on office premises taken on lease 16.55 20.53

Total 18.31 21.51

3.24 Other expenses

Filing Fees ' 0.57 0.20
Rates and Taxes 0.11 0.03
Printing & Stationary 0.87 -
Legal and Professional Expenses 30.04 24.32
Goods and service tax expensed out 6.05 7.13
Payment to Auditor

- Audit Fees 5.58 8.14

- Tax Audit fees 1.06 1.06

- Other services - 0.35
Directors' Sitting Fees 4,20 1.80
Transaction charges by Depository Participant {DP) 5.00 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 3.44 3.63
Total 56.92 46.65!
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SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended arch, 2022.

.25

(Currency : INR in Lakhs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended 31st March, ended 31st March,

: 2021
Tax reconciliations
Tax expense from continuing operations
Current tax
- Current period* 4,721.92 550.65
- Changes in estimates related to prior years - (5.83)
Deferred tax . (0:1) (2.25)
Total 4,721.81 542.57
* Including Rs. 2,622.27 iakhs being tax on long term capital gain on sale of equity instruments classified as Fair value
through other comprehensive Income (FVOCI).
Effective tax rate reconciliation
Profit before tax . mgghz.s's (7,479.25)
Company's domestic tax rate: . 7% 25.17%
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 675.24 (1,882.38)
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years - (5.83)
Effect of: -
Non-deductible expenses 1,437.59 2,433.20
Change in other Miscellenous items (50.44) (2.42)
Capital gain (LTCG) @ 10% (being tax on long term capital gain on sale of equity '
instruments classified as Fair value through other comprehensive Income (FYOCT))
2,622.27 -
Capital gain (STCG) @ 15% 37.16 -
TOTAL 4,721.81 542.57
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Unrealised gain on securities carried at fair value through other comprehensive
income 1,17,418.33 87,712.20
1,17,418.33 87,712.20
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets 0.46 0.45
Provision for compensated absences, gratuity and other employee benefits 3.06 2.24
Impact on Ind AS 116 0.70 1.44
422 4.13
Deferred tax liabilities (net) lg=1_7,414.11 87,708.07
Reconciliation
Opening Balance of Deferred tax (87,708.07) {31,529.90)
Credit / (Charge) to Profit & Loss/ retained eamings 0.11 2.25
Recognised in/ reclassified from other comprehensive income (29,706.15) {56,180.42)
Closing balance of Deferred tax (1,F1.414.11) (87,708.07)

i

Rl Z
o (MUrea ) T




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022.

4 Earnings per share ('EPS")
The computation of EPS is given below :

Profit after tax

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

during the year (in units}

Basic EPS of face value INR 10 each (in INR)

Diluted Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

Diluted EPS of face value INR 10 each (in INR)

5 Contingent liabilities
{to the extent not provided for)

(Currency: INR in Lakhs)

As at 31st March,
2022

583.38
20,50,000

28.46

2,20,50,000
2.65

There is no contingent liability as at 31st March, 2022 (31st March, 2021: INR Nil)

6 Capital commitments
{10 the extent not provided for}

As At 31st March,
2021

(8,021.82)
20,50,000

(391.31)
2,20,50,000.00

(36.38)

There are no conlracts in capital account to be executed and not provided for as at 31st March, 2022 (31st March, 2021: INR

Nil}

7 There are no long term contracts, including derivative contract, for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

8 Operating leases - Ind AS 116

Assets taken on Lease :
Maturity Analysis of Lease Liabilities
The Company has taken office premises on operating

Contractual undiscounted cash flows

In less than & year

In 1 year to 5 years

In more than 5 years

Total undiscounted lease linbilities at 31st March, 2022

Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position at 31
March 2022

Current
Non-current

Amount recognised in profit or loss
Interest on lease liabilities
Expenses relating to short-term leases

As at 31st March, As At 31st Mareh,
2022 2021

18.36 24.00
4.59 30.00

22.95 54.00

17.11 20.44
4.52 28.27
0.22 5.3

16.55 20.53

16.77 25.84
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SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TQ THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022.

(Currency: INR in Lakhs)

Employee retirement benefits

A. Defined contribution plans
The Company does not have any defined contribution plans.

B. Defined benefit plan

Retirement Gratuity (Unfunded)
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (unfunded). The company’s defined benefit gratuity plan is a final salary plan for
employees. Gratuity is paid from company as and when it becomes due and is paid as per company scheme for Gratuity.

The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial valuation. The following tables summarise
the compongnts of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the
respective plans:

31ST MARCH, 31ST MARCH,
2022 2021
Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date :
Morlality table Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2006-08) Ult table {2006-08) Ult table

Discount rate 6.84% 6.26%
Salary escalation (p.a.) 10,00% 10.00%
Employee attrition rate 10.00% 10.00%
Changes in the defined benefit obligation :

Opening defined benefit obligation 4.29 2.10
Current service cost 1.25 0.79
Past service cost - -
Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions - 1.49
Interest on defined benefit obligation 0.27 0.18
Benefits paid directly by employer (0.31) (0.91)
Remeasurements due to: - -
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from changes in financial assumptions (0.28) 0.12
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from changes in demographic assumplions 0.11 -
Actuarial 1oss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes 0.75 0.52
Closing defined benefit obligation 6.08 4.29

Change in fair value of plan assets : -
Opening fair value of plan assets -
Contribution by employer -
Interest on plan asset

Remeasurements due to:
Actual return on plan assels less interest on plan assets -
Benefits paid -
Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year -

Amount recognised in Balance Sheet :

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation {6.08) (4.29)
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net Linbility recognised in Balance Sheet (6.08) (4.29)

Profit and loss account expense :
Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest on net defined liability 0.27 0.18
Total expense charged to profit and loss account 1.52 0.97

1.25 0.79




SATTYA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022.

(Currency: INR in Lakhs)

Amount recorded in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 31ST MARCH, 31ST MARCH,
1012 2021
Remeasurements during the period due to;
Changes in financial assumptions (0.28) 0.12
Changes in demographic assumptions 0.11 -
Experience adjustments 0.75 0.52
Actual return on plan assets less return on plan assels - -
Amount recognised in OCI 0.58 0.64
Category of Assets

Investments quoted in active market - -

Unquoted investments :
Insurer managed funds - -

Sensitivity Analysis :

Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 6.08 4.29
Delta Effect of +% Change in Rate of Discounting (0.43) (0.35)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 0.49 0.41
Delta Effect of +i% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 047 0.39
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (0.42) (0.34)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Raie of Employee Tumover 0.13) (0.11}
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Tumover 0.14 0.13

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on Teasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant,

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensilivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same methad as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation
as recognised in the balance sheet.

There are no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

Projected Plan Cash Flow :
The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan based on past service of the
employees as at the valuation date :

Maturity Profile

Expected benefits for year 1 0,31 0.24
Expected benefits for year 2 0.31 0.27
Expected benefits for year 3 0.85 0.26
Expected benefits for year 4 1.37 0.35
Expected benefits for year 5 0.41 0.68
Sum of Expected benefits for year 6 to year 10 1.95 1.50
Sum of Expected benefits foryear 11 and above 6.52 518

The weighted average duration to the payment of these cash flows is 10 years.

Risk Associated with Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and the Company is exposed to the Following Risks :

Interest Rate Risk : A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government Securities Rate will increase the present value of the liability
requiring higher provision.

Salary Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salary of members. As such an increase
in the salary of members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Company has to manage pay-out based on pay as you
20 basis from own funds.

Mortality risk : Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity
risk.

During the year, there were no plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.
C. Other long term benelits

1) Amount recognised as a liability in respect of compensated leave absences as per actuarial valuation as on 31st March, 2022 is INR 6.09 lakhs.
(as on 31st March 2021 is INR 4.59 lakhs).
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SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31st March, 2022,

(Currency : INR in Lakhs)

10 Related Party Disclosures
{A) Names of related parties and nature of relationship :

i Ultimate Holding compaay
Mefres LLP

ii Holding company
Rayirth Holding and Trading Company Private Limited

iii Subsidiary
Canes Venatici Trading Privace Limited

iv Entities pver which the director along with relatives exercise significant influence
Asian Paints Limited
Hitech Specialities Solutions Limited

v Directors
Mr, Malav A. Dani
Mr. Bomi Chinoy
Mr. Ashwin Nagarwadia

vi Key Management Personnel (KMFP)
M. Percy Jal Dajee - Chief Executive Officer & Chief Financial Officer
Mrs. Prachi Talwar Desai - Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 5th February, 2020 upto 31 December, 2020)
Mr. Mukesh Desai - Chief Financial Officer {w.e.f. 17th November, 2020 till 30th April, 2021}
Ms. Hetali Mehta - Company Secretary (W.e.f 015t May 2021)

Nate:
Related Parly Relationships, other than between a Parent and its subsidisries, ate disclosed only where the Company has transactions with those parties during the year / previous year.

(B) Related Party Transactions :
. Entities over which the
Ultimate Holding . .
" . a director along with . Key Management
Particulars Company & Holding Subsidiary relatives exercise Directors Personnel (KMF)
Company L |
significant influence
21-22 20-21 21-22 20-21 11-22 20-21 21-22 20-21 21-22 10-21
Dividend received
Asian Paints Limited 19,234,535 2,734 85
Directors Sitting Fees - - - - - - 4.20] 1.80 - -
Interest on loan taken from
Mr. Mafav Dani - - - - - - 86,60 9.7 - -
Lease rent paid
Hitech Specialities Solutions Limited - - - 2237 25.97 - - - -
Salary *
Mr. Percy Jal Dajee - - - - - - - - [4.63 11.98
Mirs. Prachi Talwar Desai - - - - - - - - - 10.15
Mr. Mukesh Desai - . - - - - . - 145 4.57
Mrs Hetali Mehta - - - - - - - - 7.64 -
Loans (Received back) / Given
Canes Venatici Trading Private Limited - - - -2.72 - - - - - -
Loan Taken from
M. Malav Dani - - - - - - 750.00 715.00 - -
L andin t
Lease Deposits Given
Hitech Specialities Solutions Ltd - - - - - - - - - -
Loan Payable (inluding interest accrual)
Mr. Malav Dani - - - - - - 1,542 94 723.98 - -
Optionally Fully Convertible Debenture
JOFCD] Payable io
Mefree LLP 20000 200.00 - - - - - -
1
Notes :
* In the above balances benefits arising on account of gratuity / comp d ab are not included as these benefits are determined at # Company level.

During the year, there was no material transaction with any relsted parties as per the Related Party Transactions Policy of the Company and all the related party transactions ¢ntered into by
the Company were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's lesygth basis.
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SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315ST MAR, 2022

11 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled,

{Currency: INR in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,2022 As at March 31, 2021
Within 12 months After 12 months Total Within 12 { After 12 months Total

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,013.36 - 1,013.36 317.41 - N4l
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 2.115.09 - 2115.09 1 i61.72 - 1,161.72
Investments 71,700.00 16,15,780.44 16,87,480.44 1,20,200.0¢ 13,10,607 42 14.30,807.42
Other financial assets 19.68 - 12.68 0.02 14.93 14.96
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets {net) - £.66 £.66 - 14.63 14.63
Property Plant and Equipments - 311 311 - 083 0.83
Right of use assets 20.69 - 20.69 20.53 2564 46.17
Other Intangible assets - 0.15 0.15 - 009 0.09
Total Assets 74,868.82 16,15,790.36 16,90,659.18 1,21,699.69 13,10,663.54 14,32,363.23
Fi ial Liabilities
Trade payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro 0.54 - 0.54 - - -

enterprises and small enterprises
{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other 3.74 B 874 273 - 273
than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Debt Securities 33,531.93 200.00 33,731.93 22,148 52 - 22,148.52
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 38,232.88 1,542.94 39,775.82 96,799.57 715.00 97,514.57
Other Financial Liabilities 21.63 - 21.63 20.44 2827 48.71
Non-financial liabilities el
Provisions 1217 - 12,17 0.66 312 3.88
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) - 1,17,414.11 1,17,414.11 - 87,708.08 §7,708.08
Other non-financial liabilities 7188 - 7286 119.27 - 116.27
Total Liabilities 71,880.76 1,19,i57.05 1,91,037.80 1,19,097,98 88,459.56 2,07,550.75
Net 2,988.06 14,96,633.30 14,99,621.37 2,601.71 12,22,203.98 12,24,812.48




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS As at 31st March, 2022

2

Disclosure on Financial Instruments

Accounting classification and fair values

(Currency: INR in Lakhs)

The foflowing tables presents the carrying value and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

As at J1st March, 2022
Equity
Investments -
Particulars Financial Financial instruments|  Fair value Total
instruments at cost| at amortised cost | through other
comprehensive
income
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,013.36 - 1,013.36
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents - 2,115.09 - 2,115.09
Investments 1.00 - 16,87.479.44 16,87,480.44
Other financial assets - 19.68 - 19.68
1.00 3,148.13 |  16,87,479.44 16,90,628.57
Financia! Liabilities
Trade payables
{i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and - 0.54 - 0.54
small enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than - 8.74 - 8.74
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Debt Securities - 33,731.93 33,731.93
Borrowings {Other than Debt Securities) - 39,775.82 39,775.82
Other Financial Liabilities - 21.63 - 21.63
- 73,538.66 - 73,538.66
As at 31st March, 2021
Equity
Investments -
. Financial Financial instruments| Fair value
Particulars instruments at cost| at amortised cost | through other Total
comprehensive
income
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 317.41 - 317.41
[Bank Balance ather than cash and cash equivalents - 1,161.72 - 1,161.72
[nvestments 1.00 14,30,806.42 14,30,807.42
Other financial assets - 14,96 - 14.96
1.00 1,494.09 | 14,30,806.42 14,32,301.51
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and - 6.79 - 679
small enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than - 273 - 273
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Debt Securities - 22,148.52 22,148.52
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) - 97,514.57 97,514.57
Other Financial Liabilities - 48.71 - 48.71
- 1,19,721.32 - 1,19,721.32
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SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS As at 31st March, 2022

(Currency: INR in Lakhs)

Fair Value Heirarchy

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unobservabie and consist of the following
three levels:

Level 1 - Quoted prices in an active market: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities that are measured by reference to quoted prices {unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques with observable inputs: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.. as prices) or indirectly {i..; derived from prices).

Level 3 - Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inpuls that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair valugs are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by
prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data,

The following table summarises financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis and financial assets that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

As at March 31, 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Investments in equity instruments 16,87,479.44 -
16,87,479.44 - -
As at March 31, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Investments in equity instruments 14,30,806.42 -
14,30,806.42 - -

The foliowing table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair values for financial instruments measured at fair value in the balance
sheet, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used,

Type Valuation technique

Investments in equity instruments Published Market Value

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for the years ended 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021.
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SATTYA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS As at st March, 2022

13

14

{Curmency: INR in Lakhs)

Financial instruments and associated risks

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
» Credit risk

+ Liquidity risk

» Market risk

- Interest Rale Risk

The Company has a risk management framework which not only covers the market risks but also other risks iated with the financial assets and
liabilities such as interest rate risks and credit risks.

The risk management framework is approved by the Board of Directors. The risk management framework aims to:

(i) create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of interest rate fluctuations on the Company’s business plan.
(ii) achieve greater predictability to earnings by determining the financial value of the expected eamings in advance.

Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the risk of financial foss to the company if a counter-party fajls to mest its contractual obligations.

Trade receivables

Credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited, since the trade receivables amount is NIL.

Cash sh equi

The company holds cash and cash equivalents of INR 1,013.37 lakhs as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: INR 317.41 lakhs). The credit worthiness of
such banks and financial institutions is evaluated by the manag on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good.

Bank nce other than cash an uivalen

The company holds bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents of INR 2,1 15,09 lakhs as a1 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: 1,161.73 INR lakhs).
“The credit worthiness of such banks and financial institutions is evaluated by the agy on an ongoing basis and is considered to be goed.

Liquidity Risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by
ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient Liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable [osses or risk to the Company’s reputation. !

Market Rigk:

Market risk is the risk that the [air value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will £ b of changes in market prices. In the case of the
Company, market risk primarily impacts financial instr d at fair value through profit or loss.

Inter: Rink:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company does not have exposure to the risk of changes in market intercst rate as it has debt obligations with fixed interest rates which are measured al

amortised cost,

Distlosure required as per Reserve Bank Of India Notification No. DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22,10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020

The Company does niot have any loan assets as on 3 1st March 2022 and hence no disclosure applicable thereto.

Disclosure required as per Reserve Bank of India Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

Public disclosure on Liquidity risk

(i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)

As At 31st March, 2022
Amount (INR in % of Total
Sr. No. No. of significant Counter Parties | Lakh} % of Total Deposits| Liabilities
1 5 71,764.81 - 37.57%
TOTAL 71,764.81 - 3757%
As At 3 kst March, 2021
Amount (INR in % of Tatal
Sr. No. No. of significant Counter Parties | Lakh} % of Total Deposits| Liabilities
1 9 1,18,738.34 - 57.21%
TOTAL 1,18,738.34 - 57.21%

:‘ﬁ (/

([ MUMBAT )
A J
1</\\ .

e




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS As at 315t March, 2022

(iv)

™

{Currency: INR in Lakhs)
Note:

- A “Significant counterparty” is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or affilisted counterparties
accounting in aggregate for more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total liabilities and 10% for other non-
deposit taking NBFCs.

- Total Liabilities has been computed as Total Assets less Equity share capital less Reserve & Surplus and computed
basis extant regulatory ALM guidel

Top 20 large deposits (amount in 2 Eakh and % of total deposits) - Not Applicable

As At 31st March, 2022
% of Total % of Total
Amount {INR in Lakh) Borrowings Borrowings
As At 31st Mar, 2022 |As At 31st Mar, 2022
Nil Nil Nil
Top 10 borrowings (amoumt in 2 lakh and % of total borrowings)
No. of
significant
Counter Amount (INRin  |% of Total
Parties Name of the parties Lakh) Borrowings
1 Bajaj Finance Limited 20,105.48 27.35%
Deusche Investments India Private
2 Limited 12,000.00 16,32%
HSBC Investdirect Financial
3 services (India) Limited 4,619.74 6,28%
Barlays Investments and loans
4 {India) Private Limited 1,507.66 2.05%|
5 IC1C] Prudential Mutual Fund 33,531.93 45.62%
71,764.81 97.63% -

Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product

Amount (INR in % of Total

Sr. No. Name of the insty t/ product Lakh) Borrowings
a Listed Non-Convertible, Redeemable
Debentures 33,531.93 45.62%
,, |
Borowings from Fi ial Institutions 38,232.88 52.01%
71,764.81 97.63%
Note:

- A "significant instrument/product” is defined as a single instrument/product or group of similar
instrumenis/products which in aggregate amount to more than 1% of the NBFC-NDST's, NBFC-Ds
total liabilities and 10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs.

Stack ng'gi
Ratios
§r. No. Particulars Public funds Total Liabilities Total Assets

1 Commereial papers as a % of Nil Nil Nil
Non-convertible debentures (original
maturity of less than one year) as a %

2 of Nil Nil Nil
Other short-term liabilities, if any as a

3 % of 100.16% 37.63% 4.25%

Note: Short term liabilities include financial liabilities and non-financial liabilities with maturity pattern of less than one year,
Debt Securities and other borrowings have been classified as per the residual period for the carliest exercise date of the Put/Call option.

Institutional set-up of liquidity risk management.

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted the Asset Liability Management Commitice and the Risk Management Committee. The Asset
Liability Management Committee is supported by Asset Liability Menagement Support Group to analyse, monitor and report the liquidity risk profile to
the Asset Liability Management Committee.

The Asset Liability Management Commitiee reviews the liquidity risk management, funding and capital planning, analyzing different scenarios and
preparation of contingency plans. Further, the Risk Management Committes and the risk profile of the Company.

The Company manages liquidity risk in accordence with the Company's Asset Ligbility Management Policy. The Company manages liquidity risk by
maintaining sufficient cash surplus and by keeping adequate amount of committed credit lines to meet its repayment obligations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

16

(Currency: INR in Lakhs)

Additional disclosure as required under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and amended clause 34 and 53 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(a) Details of investments made are given in note 3.3.

(b) There are no loans or guarantee given by the Company in accordance with Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules issued there

17

18

19

20

21

22
(@
(i)
(iii)
(iv)

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As per the provisions of the Section 135 of the Act, Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year was INR NIL.

Due to micro and small suppliers

Sundry creditors do not include any amount payable to Small Scale Industrial Undertakings and Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. Under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) which came into force from 2 October 2006, certain disclosures are
required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises. On the basis of the information and records available with the management,
the following disclosures are made for the amounts due to the Micro, Small and Medium enterprises, who have registered with the competent

Capital management

Equity share capital and other equity are considered for the purpose of Company’s capital management, The Company manages its capital so as to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to the Shareholders. The capital structure of the Company is based on
management’s judgement of its strategic and day-to-day needs with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market
confidence. The funding requirements are met through equity and operating cash flows generated. The Company may take appropriate steps in order
to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure.

The Secured Listed Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) of INR 198 crore issued by the Company are secured by 49,34,000 equity
shares of Asian Paints Limited and the required asset cover for the said NCD is 4:00 times. As on 31st March 2022, the Company has maintained
the asset cover of 6:49 times of the NCDs issued. Said information is provided in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 54 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Secured Listed Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) of INR 98 crore issued by the Company are secured by 21,78,000 equity
shares of Asian Paints Limited and the required asset cover for the said NCD is 4:00 times. As on 31st March 2022, the Company has maintained
the asset cover of 6:60 times of the NCDs issued. Said information is provided in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 54 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Other information:
Credit CRISIL AA+/STABLE

Rating

Debt 0.05
Equity

Ratio

Net 14,99,621.38 lakhs

* includes financial instruments fair valued through other comprehensive income

Subsequent events
There are no significant subsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statements as on the balance sheet date.

Information regarding the following matters as specified in division Il of Schedule III of The Companies Act, 2013.

The Compeny does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami
property.

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period as on

Balanceshect date. =
. ¥
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. /Z \:/L\IB ,f L) 2\
P30 N%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3158T MARCH, 2022

v

(vi)

{vii)
vii)
{ix)

23
24

25

(Currency: INR in Lakhs)
The Company has not advanced ot loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectfy lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or .
(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 4
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
The Company has not entered into any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196} (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are requited to be transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of
sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act since Corporate Sociat Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to the company.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the
Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act since Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
is not applicable to the company.,

Additional information pursuant to Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, has not been furnished, to the extent not applicable.

The financial statements are authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24th May, 2022.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever considered necessary.
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{Currency: INR in Lakhs)
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 {continued)

Disclosure required as per Reserve Bank of India Master Direction — Cove I C

Non Deposit taking —Systemically Imporant (CIC-ND-51) Company having Certificale of Registration (CoR) bearing registration no, N-

‘The Company is Core I Comp
1302355 since 2151 June 2019.

The other disclosures which are required as per Master Direction- Core I C {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 are as follows:
Sr. Amount Amount Amount Amount
Ne. Particulars Outstanding Overdue Outstanding Overdue
As at 315t March, 2022 As At 315t Mareh, 2021
LIABILITIES:
1 Loans and Advances availed by the CIC mclusive of inferest accrued thereon but not)
paid:-
(2} |Debentures : Secured 33,531.93 21,943.52 -
Unsecured 200.00 200.00 -
{Other than flling within the
meaning of public deposits}
{b) |Deferred Credits - . -
(¢) {Term Loans Secured 38,232.88 96,789.82 -
(d) |Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - - -
{¢) |Commercial Paper . - -
(P |Other Loans
{i) Loan from Director 1,542.54 72398 -
(ii) {Overdraft Facility - secured) - 0.77 -
5r Particulars Amount Outstanding Amount Outstanding |
No. As at 31st March, 2022 As At 31st March, 2021
ASSETS SIDE:
¢ Break-up of Loans and Advances inclnding bills receivable (ather than those
included in {(4) below):
(a) [Secured -
(b} |Unsecured
- Loan given -
3

Break-up of Leased Assety and stock ¢n hire and other assets counting towards asset|
financing activities

(1) |Lease assets including lease remals under sundry debtors:
() Financial Lease

(b} Operating Lease

(i) |Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debiors:
{a) Assets an hire

(b) Repossessed Assets

(iii} |Other loans counting owards asset financing activities

(a) Loans where asseis have been repossessed

(b) Loans cther than (a) sbove

4 [Break-up of Investments:
Currens [nvestmenss :
E|Quoted:

(i) Shares : (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(i) Debentures and Bonds
(iiiy Units of mutual funds
(iv} Government Securities

(v} Others (Please specify)

N

Unquoted:
(i) Shares : {a) Equity
{b) Preference
(i) Debentures and Bonds
{iii) Units of murual funds
(iv) Govemment Secunties
{v) Others (Please specify
Long Term [nvestments:
1 |Quoted:
(i} Shares - (a) Equity
Asian Paints Limited
(b) Preference
{}) Debentures and Bonds
{iii) Units of mutual fimds
(iv) Government Securities
{v) Others (Please specify)
Unquoted:
(i) Shares : (a) Equity
Canes Yenanei Trading Privaie
Lirnited (Subsidiary}
(b} Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutua! funds
{iv) Government Secunities

>

(v) Others (Please specify)

16,87.479.44

t4,30,806.42

f.‘/'

——

88 AND Tk,
N

~




SATTYA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
{Currency: INR in Lakhs)

27  Disclosure required as per Reserve Bank of India Master Direction ~ Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016
{continued)

1 Components of ANW and other related information

As at 31st March, As At 31st March,

Particulars 2022 2021
1) ANW as a % of Risk Weighted Assets 830% 577%
Adjusted Net Worth (ANW) 8,52,097.97 6,10,065.36
Risk Weighted Assets 1,02,664.34 1,05,677.59
ii) unrealized appreciation in the book value of quoted investments 16,39,836.20 12,46,834.17
iii) diminution in the aggregate book value of quoted investments NIL NIL
iv) Leverage Ratio 0.22 034
Qutside Liabilities* 1,91,032.79 2,07,557.54
Adjusted Net Worth (ANW) 8,52,097.97 6,10,065.36

* Quiside liabitity includes deffered tax liability of Rs, 1,17,414.11 lakhs (PY- Rs. 87,708.07 lakhs} on unrealised appreciation on quoied inve,
2 Investment in other CICs

a} Total amount representing any direct or indirect capital contribution
made by one CIC in another CIC (including name of CICs) NIL NIL

b) Number of CICs with their names wherein the direct or indirect capital
contribution exceeds 10% of Qwned Funds NIL NIL

<) Number of CICs with their names wherein the direct or indirect capital
contribution is less than 10% of Owned Funds NIL NIL

3 Off Balance Sheet Exposure

i} Off balance sheet exposure NA NA
ii) Financial Guarantee as a % of iotal off-balance sheet exposure NA NA
iii) Non-Financial Guarantee as 2% of total off-balance sheet exposure NA NA
iv) Off balance sheet exposure to overseas subsidiaries NA NA
v) Letter of Comfort issued to any subsidiary NA NA

4 Investments

(1} Value of Investments
(i) Gross Value of Investments

{a) In India 16,87,480.44 14,30,807.42
(b) Outside India, NIL NIL

(ii) Provisions for Depreciation
{a) In India NIL NIL
{b) Outside [ndia, NIL NIL

(iit) Net Value of Investments
(2) In India 16,87,480.44 14,30,807.42
(b) Outside India. NIL NIL

{2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments.

(i) Opening balance NIL NIL

(ii) Add : Provisions made during the year NIL NIL

(iii} Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year NIL NIL

{(iv) Closing balance NIL NIL



SATTYA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS As at 31st March, 2023

{Currency: INR in Lakhs}

d a3 in (2) and (3) above:

5__Borrower group-wise classification of assets fi

[ AssSUtMahoz |
Sr. Amount net of Provisions
No. Catepory Secured Unsecured Total
1|Related Parties
(a) Substdianes . - -
(b} Companies in the same group - - -
(¢} Other related parties - - -
2|Other than relared parties - - -
Total - - -
As At 315t March, 2021
Sr. Amount net of Provigions
No. Category Secured Unsecured Total
1 |Relaied Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - - -
(b} Companies in the same group . - -
(<) Odher related parties - - -
2{Other than related parties . - .
Total - - -
§__lovestor group-wise classification of all investments (current and non-current) in shares and securities (hoth quoted and unquoted):
Market Value Book ¥alue (cost) Market Value Baok Value {¢ost)
Sr. C / Break up or {Net of / Break up or {Net of
Alegory . .. N
Ne. fair value or NAV Provision) fair value or NAV Provigion)
As at 31st March, 2022 Ax At 31st March, 2621
I |Related Paries
(a) Subsidiaries 100 L.0% 1.00 Loo
{b) Companies in the same proup 16,87 479 44 1,02,618.71 14,30,806.42 1,05,614.53
{c) Other related parties . - . -
2 |Other than related parties - - . -
Total 16.87,480.44 1,02,619.71 14,30,807.42 £,05,615.53
7 __ Other information
Sr. Particulars Amount Qutstanding Amount Ouistanding
Ne. As at 3Tst March, 2022 As At 3ist March, 2021
(i) |Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related Parties - R
(a) Other than related parties - -
{it) |Net Non-Performing Assets
() Related Parties - -
(a) Other than related parties - -
i11) | Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt - b




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

(Currency: INR in Lakhs)

5 Business Ratios

Return on Equity (RoE) 0.04% (0.65%)
Return on Assets {(RoA) 0.03% (0.56%)
Net profit per employee (in Lakhs) 83.34 (1002.73)

6 Provisions and Contingencies
Provisions and Contingencies shall be presented as under;

Break up of *Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the Profit
and Loss Account

Provisions for depreciation on Investment NA NA

Provision towards NPA NA NA

Provision made towards Income tax NA NA

Other Provision and Contingencies {with details) NA NA

Provision for Standard Assets NA NA
7 Concentration of NPAs

Exposure as a % of
{Amount in crore) total assets

Total Exposure to top five NPA accounts NA NA
8 Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)

Not applicable, as company does not have any joint venture and subsidiaries abroad,

Name of the Joint Yenture/ Subsidiary Other Partner in the JV Country Total Assets

Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
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SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS As at 31st March, 2022

(Currency: INR in Lakhs)

29 Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect :
The Company has no exposure to real estate sector directly or indirectly in the current and previous year,

30 Registration obtained from other financisl sector regulators:
The Company is registered with following other financial sector regulators [Financiat regulators as described by Ministry of Finance].

i.  Ministry of Corporale affairs,

31 Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators:
No penalties were imposed by RBI and other regulators during the current and previous year.

32 Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies
As on 31" March 2022 and As on 31st March 2021

Borrowing limit or,

Name of the Rating assigned |Valid upto conditions imposed

Deposit instruments

rating agency by rating agency
Non-convertible debentures [NCD]  |CRISIL AA+/Stable 25-Feb-23 INR 50,000 lakhs
As per our report attached

KHANDHAR MEHTA & SHAH For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accoun ' :

SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

Gautam Mehta i \sﬂ_‘_/ Malav A. Dani

Partner ' : Director Director
Membership No. 112626 DIN: 01184336 DIN: 07519315
Place: Mumbai
Date: 24th May, 2022 . rhk}a .
Py Q%w -
Percy Jal Dajee Hetali Mehtz
Chief Executive Officer & Company Secretary

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Dale: 24th May, 2022
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of Sattva Holding and Trading
Private Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its wholly-subsidiary, namely, Canes Venatici Trading Private
Limited, {the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”}, which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Consolidated Staternent of Profit and Loss {including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notés to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as the “consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accountihg Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state
of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2022, the consolidated profit, consolidated total comprehensive
income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing {SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financiol Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. . iy

3rd Floor, Devpath Complex,

B/h. Lal Bungatlow, Off C.G. Road,

Navrangpura, Ahmedabad - 380 006.

Phone ;+91 7966315450/ 51/52/53,
+91 79 2646 1526,

E-mail : kms@kmsindia.in




Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.




The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process of the Group/

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs, will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

& |dentify and assess the risks of material misstaterment of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e« QObtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company and its subsidiary company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and refated disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern,

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.



¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii} to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entity included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and t0 communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consoclidated financial
statements.

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account

maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements. @\/




(d)

(e)

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and on the basis of
the report of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary company, none of the directors of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164{2} of the Act.

{f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and

{g)

{h}

the operating effectiveness of such controls of the Group, refer to our separate report in Annexure ‘A’
which is based on the auditor’s reports of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Holding Company to its directors
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. No remuneration has been
paid or provided by the subsidiary company to any of its directors.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, we further report that:

i.  There were no pending litigations which would impact the consolidated financial position of the
Group.

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long - term contracts including
derivative contracts.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company.

iv. [{a) The respective Management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company
or its subsidiary company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”}, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Holding Company or its
subsidiary company or provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries;



Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred to in Para (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our
Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Holding Company on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2022:

Report on the internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of Sattva
Holding and Trading Private Limited (“the Holding Company”} and its subsidiary, namely, Canes Venatici
Trading Private Limited, as at March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the interna!l control with reference to
consolidated financial statements criteria established by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to respective Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statemenis was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial staten
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolid

nts




{b) The respective Management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us, that, to the best
of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or its
subsidiary company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or its
subsidiary company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding
Party or provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

{c) Based on audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and {ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under {a} and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

v. As per the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, no dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.
Accordingly, compliance with the provisions of Section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3{xxi} and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 {the “Order”/ “CARQ”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of
the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information and explanations given
to us, based on the CARQ report issued by us for the Holding Company and the CARO report issued
by the auditor of the subsidiary company, included in the consolidated financial statements of the
Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or
adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

For KHANDHAR MEHTA & SHAH
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Reg. No.: 125512W

. Gautam Mehta \\_‘_
Partner
M. No.: 112626

UDIN: 22112626AKILR53278

Date: May 24, 2022
Place: Ahmedabad



statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements of
the Holding Company and its subsidiary company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the consoclidated
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.




Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Holding
Company and its subsidiary company, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal
control with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by the respective companies
considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For KHANDHAR MEHTA & SHAH
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Reg. No.: 12

. Gautam Mehta
Partner
M. No.: 112626

UDIN: 22112626AKILRS3278

Date: May 24, 2022
Place: Ahmedabad






SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN. NO- Us5923MH2011PTC214070
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

{Currency : INR in Lakhs)

Pariculars Noie No. As At 31st March, 2022 As At 31st March, 2021
ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 31 1,014.46 31858
Bank Batance other than cash and cash equivalents 32 211509 1,161.73
Investmenls 33 16,87, 479.44 14,30,806.42
Other Financial assets 34 19.68 14.95
Non-financial Assets
Current tax assets {Net of provision for tax) 35 6.66 14.63
Property, Plant and Equipment 36 ER Y| 0.83
Right of use assets 37 2069 46.18
(nher intangible assets 38 0.15 0.09
Total 16,90,659.28 14,32,363.41
LEIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 39
(i) 10tal owstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises 0.54 6.79
{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small 9.55 3.56
enterprises
Debt Securities 310 33,731.93 22,148.52
Bomowings (Other than Debt Securities) 3 39,781 .82 97,519.57
Orher Financial Liabilities 312 21.63 48.71
73,545.47 1!19!727.15

Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (Net) - -
Provisions 313 1217 8.88

Deferred wax liabilities (Met} 325 1,17.414.11 87,708.07
Other non-fnancial liabilities 3.14 72.94 119.33
1,17,499.22 §7,836.28

Equity
Equity share capital Als 205.00 205.00
MMher equicy EAL 14,99 409.59 12,24,594.98
Total 14,99,614.59 12,24,799.98
Total 16,90,659.-23 14,32,363.41

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements - ] to 23

As per our report atiached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
KHANDHAR MEHTA & SHAH SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
Chartered Accountants .- |

Registration No.: 1!2_5‘5;1_'2 .

1]

Malav A, Dani
Direclor Director
DIN: 01184336 DIN: 07519315

P, '3 QZ‘/ H.H ' MJ}* )
Perty Jal D Hetali Mehta

Chief Executive Officer & Company Secretary
Chief Financial OlTicer

Place: Mumbai

Date:24th May, 2022

Place; Mumbai
Date:24th May, 2022




SATTYA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN. NO- U65923MH2011PFTC2140H)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
(Currency: [NR in Lakhs}

. For the year ended 31st March, For the year ended 3st
Particulars Note Na. 2022 March, 2021

Revenue from operations

Interest Income kAN 67.67 125.06
Dividend Income 315 10,234 55 2,734 .85
Met gain on fair value changes 3.19 216.53 -
Profit on sale of Investments i - -
Total Revenue from operations 10,518.75 2,359.91
Oher Income 320 0.95 0.27
Tead income 10,519.70 2.860.18
Expenses
Finance Cost Epdl 7.683.46 10,200.61
Employee Benefits Expenses 322 78.08 70.66
Deepreciation, amortizaticn and impainnent 323 1831 215
Other expenses 324 58.00 48.31
Total Expenses 7.837.85 10,341.09
Profit Before Tax 268185 {7.480.91)
Tax Expense:
Current Tax 2.099.65 550,65
Deferred Tax {011) (2.25)
Reversal of excess provigion for earlier years - {(5.83)
- 2,099.54 542.57
Profit After Tax A 53131 (8,023.492‘

Other Comprehensive lIncome
{A) (1) Hems that will not ke reclassified to profit or foss

- Changes in fair valvation of equity instruments 3,06,561.26 4.91,089.03
- Remeasurment lose on defined benefit plan {0.58) (G.64)
{ii) trcome fax relating to items thot will rot be reclassified fo 325 (32,328.42) {56,180.42)

profit or loss 2,74,232.26 4,34,907.97

B (i) frems thar will be reclassified to profit or loxs. - -

Other Comprehensive Income B 2,74,232.26 4,34,507.97
Total Compreheusive Income for the year {A+B) 2,74,814.57 4,26,884.49
Earnings per equity share

Basic {INR) 4 41 {391.39)
Diluted {INR) 2,54 (36.39)

The accompanying noies arc an integral part of the fAnancial statements - 1 te 23

As per our repon attached For aod on behalf of the Board of Directors of
KHANDHAR MEHTA & SH SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
Chartered Accountants
jetration No.: 125512

Gauta: hita Malav A. Dani Boimi P. Chinoy
o Direcior Director
Membership No. ]]2626*',- DIN: 01184336 DIN: 07519315
Flace: Mumnhai . t M J\b ’
Date 24th May, 2022 Y M RLN
Percy Jal D Hetali Mehta
Chief Executive OMicer & Company Secretary
Chief Financisl Officer
Place: Mumbai

Date: 241h May, 2022




SATIVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN. NO- U65923MHZ01IPTC21 4070
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022

{Currency: INR in Lakhs})

For the year ended 31st March, 2022 |  For the year ended 31st March, 2021

A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES -

et profit / (loss) before Lax 2681385 {7.430.91)

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortization exp 18.31 21.51

Profit on sale of Invesment {216.53)

{mterest expense on lease liability 0.22 ' 531

Amartisation of securiry deposils (1.34) {1.23)

Operating Profit / {Loss) before working capiral changes 2.482.51 {2.455.31)

Adjusrmenis for changes in :

Othec Financial Assets - 0.02)

Trade Payahles {1.53) (1.23)

Provisions 1.78 4,05

Profit on sale of invesmment -

QOther Non Financial Liabilities (42.50) {59.85)

Cash Generated from / {used in) operations 2,433.86 {7,512.37)

Income Tax Paid (4,743.21) (339.42)

Mt Cash ganerated from / (used In) operaring aclivities {2,300.35) {8.051.78)
B SH FLO NVESTING A -

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment & intangibles (23.27) (1.06)

Fixed deposits placed with bank under lien (P48.64) (42.81)

Fixed deposits placed with bank - (5,062.87)

Proceeds from Maturicy of Fixed deposits - 7.143.45

Purchase of Investment -

Sale of Tnvesmment 50, 104.76

Net Cash (used in) / generoted from Investing Activities 49,132.85 23072
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTHITIES -

Proceeds from bomowings 56,051.29 5045296

(Repayment) of borrowings (1,02,207.11) (45,485.43}

Cash paymenis for the principal portion of the lease liability 27.08 {18.69}

Cash paymenis for the interest portion of the leese liability 1.11 {5.32)

Met Cash {used in) / gemerated from Flnoncing Activities (46,127.63) 4,943.52

MNer Increase / {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 695.87 (1,077.53)

Cash and Cash Equivalents m the beginning of the year 318.58 1,396.11

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period 1,014.46 318,58

Notes:

1 Cash and Cash equivalents comprises of :

Cash in hand 1.20 0.05

Balances with banks - in current accounts 10,74 31853

Bank deposits with maturity less than three months 1,002 52

1,014.46 31&

The above statrment of cash flows has been prepared under (he 'Indirect Method” as set out in Ind AS 7 - "Stawment of Cash Flows".

Since the Company is regi J a5 Mon-Banking Financial Coempany- Core [ Company- Non Deposit taking - Systemically [mportant (NBFC-CIC-ND-
51), purchase and sale of invesmments have been considered as part of 'Cash flow from investing activities' and finance cost of INR 7,683.46 lakhs (previous Year
ended : 10,200.61 lakhs), interest income - INR 67.66 lakhs (previous Year ended : 125.06 lakhs) and dividend earned of INR 10,234.55 lakhs (previovs Year ended
. 2.734 85 lakhs) have been considered as part of 'Cash flow from operating aclivities',

Ditext (axes paid is meated as arising from opemting activities and s not bifurcated berween investing and finanzing activities.

Figures in brackets are outflows/ deductions. Previons year's figures have been regroup d. wherever Y.

As per our repory atached
KHANDHAR MEHTA & SHAH Far and on behalf of the Boacd of Directors of
Churtered Accountints ’ Snttva Holding and Tradige Private Limited

Registration No.: 125812W,

Malav A. Dani Bo . Chinoy

er Direcior Director
embership No. 112626 ~,  DIN: 01184336 DIN: 47519315
2 ) P H' M J"h N
fo7 o M H:
S LUl i Pekey Jal Day Hetali Mehta
Place: Mumbai S ST ‘Chief Executi cer & Company Secretary

Date:24th May, 2022 - Chief Financial Officer

PS % U2 Place: Mumbai
T Drate:24th May, 2022




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH , 2022.

(Currency: INR in Lakhs)

A. Equity Share Capital (Refer Note 3.15)

Balance as at 31st March 2022

Balance at the beginning of the current
reporting period

Changes in Equity
Share Capital doe
to prior period
errors

Restated balance at
the beginning of the
current reporting
period

Changes in equity
share capital during
the current year

Balance at the end
of the current
reporting period

205.00

205.00

Balance as at 31st March 2021

Balance at the beginning of the current

Changes in Equity

Restated balance at

Changes in equity

Balance at the end

reporting period Share Capital due [the beginning of the |share capital during |of the current
to prior period current reporting the current year reporting period
9 errors period
205.00 - - - 205.00
B. Other Equity (Refer Note 3.16)
Balance as at 31st March 2022
Reserves and Surplus TFotal
Statutory Reserve Retained Earnings Equity Instruments
through Other
Comprehensive
Income
Balance at the beginning of the current reporting 678.13 (13,562.85) 12,37,479.70 12,24,594.98
I.period
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors - - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current - - -
Eqmg period
Toral Comprehensive Income for the current year - 2,74,232.28 2,74,232.28
Dividends - - - -
Transfer to reserves - (8,970.70) - {8,970.70)]
Any other change (to be specified) 8,970.70 582.31 (44,270.14) (34,717.13)]
Profit on sale of Investment - 44,270.14 - 44,270.14
Balance at the end of the current reporting period 9,648.83 2231890 14,67,441.84 14,99,409.58




Balance as at 31s¢ March 2021

Reserves and Surplus Total
Statutory Reserve |Retained Earnings Equity Instruments

through Other

Comprehensive

Income
Balance at the beginning of the current reporting 678.13 (5.538.88) 8.02,571.25 7.97,710.50
I_pt:rioi:l
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current - (0.48) - (0.48)
reporting period
Total Comprehensive Income for the current year - - 4,34,908.45 4,34,908.45
Dividends - - - -
Transfer to retained eamings - (8,023.49) - (8,023.49)
Agmother change (to be specified) - - -
Eﬁce at the end of the current reporting period 678.13 (13,562.85) 12,37,479.70 12,24,594 98

As per our report attached
KHANDHAR MEHTA & SHAH
Chartered Accountants
Registration No.: 12

Membership No. 112626

Place: Mumbai
Date:24th May, 2022

. Percy Jal Dajee

The accompanying noies are an integral part of the financial statements - | to 23

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

Bomi P. Chi
Director
DIN: 07519315

T

Hetali Mehita
Company Secretary

Malav A. Dani
Director
DIN: 01184336

Chief Executive Officer &
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date:24th May, 2022




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

1) Background Information

Sattva Holding and Trading Private Limited (the “Holding Company™/ "Parent") (formerly Isis Holding and Trading Company Private
Limited) is a private fimited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 with its
registered office in Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, The Holding Company changed its name during the year ending 31st March, 2018 after
obtaining necessary approvals from the Registrar of Companies. The Holdiing Company has been registered as Non-Banking Financial
Company- Core Investment Company- Non Deposit taking — Systemically Important (NBFC-CIC-ND-8I) with Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) on 21st June 2019. The Holding Company is engaged in the business of investments in shares and securities.

Iis wholly owned subsidiary company, Canes Venatici Trading Private Limited is engaged in business as Importer, Exporters, distributors,
apents of the goods and merchandise and service, General Merchant, traders, dealers, del- credere agents in all the items, etc. The
company and its subsidiary together are referred 1o as the "Group”.

The Holding Company has become listed effective 5th February, 2020 consequent to issuance of Secured Rated Listed Redeemable
Transferable Non - Convertible Debentures through private placement.

The functional and presentation currency of the Group is the Indian Rupee which is the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Group operates.

Mefree LLP is the ultimate parent of the Holding Group and Rayirth Holding and Trading Company Private Limited is the Holding
Company of Sattva Holding and Trading Private Limited. Information on other related party relationships of the Group is provided in
Note 10.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2022 were approved and authorised for issue by
Board of Directors on 24th May, 2022,

2} Significant accounting policies followed by the Company

The significant accounting policies applied by the Group in the preparation of its consolidated financial statements are listed below. Such
accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these consolidated financial statements, unless otherwise
indicated.

a)  Basis of preparation :
{i) Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

. The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter
il referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate AfTairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’} read
with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. The accounting

policies are applied consistently to all the years presented in the consolidated financial statements.

(ii} Basis of preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements have boen prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention except for certain financial
instruments measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period as explained in accounting policies below.

The Group presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the
reporting date { current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date { non- current) is presented in Note 11.

All amounts disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement
of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

{iit) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The consolidated financial statements comprise of the financial statements of Sattva Holding and Trading Private Limited {the Holding
Group) and its wholly - owned subsidiary. The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance Ind AS 110 “Consolidated

Financial Statements™.




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

The Group consolidates a subsidiary when it eontrols it. Control is achieved when the parent is exposed to, or has rights, to the variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those retums through its power over the entity. Power is
demonstrated through existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity’s retumns.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control commences until the date control ceases. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed off during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

The financial statements of the Holding Group and its wholly - owned subsidiary is consolidated on a line by line basis by adding together
like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and unrealised gain ot loss,
thereon have been filly eliminated. Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions
and other events in similar circumstances. Profit or loss and each compenent of OCI are atiributed to the equity holders of the parent of the
Group.

Wherever necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of wholly - owned subsidiary to bring its accounting policies in line
with those used by the Group.

The financizl statements of the subsidiary used for the purpose of consolidation is drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent
Group, ie., year ended on 315t March.

The subsidiary considered in the consolidated financial statements are:

Name of subsidiaries Country of incorporation % of Yoling power
Canes Venatici Trading Private Limited India 100%

{iv) Signilicant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

b}

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires
management of the Group to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosures including disclosures of contingent assets and contingent liabilities as at the date of consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are
revised and in future periods which are affected.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the consolidated financial statements which may cause a material adjustment fo the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilitics within the next financial year is in respect of:

- recognition of deferred tax assets;

- measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

- Financial instruments — Fair values, risk management and impairment of financial assets

- estimates of useful lives and residual value of Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Intangible Assets

= recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies; key assumptions about the likclihood and magnitude of an outflow of
resources, if any.
- impairment test of non-financial assets: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts including the recoverability of expenditurc on
intangible assets;

(v) Fair value measurements

When the fair value of financial asscts or financiat liabilities recorded or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements cannot be
measured at the quoted price in the active markets, their fair value is measured using the valuation techniques that include the use of
vajuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasibie, a degree of
Jjudgment is required in establishing fhir values, judgments includes consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk , credit risk and volatility.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shorl-term deposits with an original maturity of

three months or less that are readlly converlible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignific Fﬁsl;mf}than es in
)

value. .
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¢}

Finagncial Instruments

(i) Classilication

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one ¢ntity and financial liability or equity instruments of
another entity.

Financial assets, other than equity, are classified into financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI) or fair
value through profit and loss account (FYTPL) or at amortised cost. Financial assets that are equity instruments are classified as FVTPL
or FYOCI. Financial liabilities are classified as amortised cost category and FYTPL.

Business Model assessment and Solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) test:

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the business model and results of SPPI test. The Group determines the
business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business abjective, This
assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including;

- how the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business mode] are evaluated and reported to the
entity’s key management personnel;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business mode] (and the financial assets held within that business model) and, in particular,

the way in which those risks are managed; and

- how managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed
ot on the contractual cash flows collected).

(ii) Initial recognition

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business model for managing
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial ligbilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilities at (FVYTPL) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the Statement of
profit and loss.

{iii} Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) if these financial assets are held within
a business model whose objective is to hold these assels in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dales to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
the Statemont of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity Instruments at FYOCI

The Group’s management has elected to classify imevocably some of its equity investments as equity instruments at FYOCIT, when such
instruments meet the definition of Equity under Ind AS 32 'Financial Instruments: Presentation’ and are not held for trading.

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends from these equity investments are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss when the right to receive the payment has been estabilished.

Financial assets at Fair value through Profit and loss

Financial assels are measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI on initial recognition. The transaction costs
directly atiributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Financial labilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the substance of the con
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised as profit or loss
respectively.

Equity instruments
An equily instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group afler deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction cosls, and are subsequently measured at amorlised cost
using effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant. For trade and other payables maturing within one year
from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximates the fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

(iv) Derecognition of Financial assets and Financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the
financial asset and substantially ail the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

(v) Impairment of financial instruments

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on & financial asset that is at amorlized cost or fair value through OCL
Loss allowance in respect of financial assets is measured at an amount equal to life time expected credit losses and is calculated s the
difference between their carrying amount and the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest mate.

(vi) Reclassification of Financinl assets

d)

€)

The Group does not re=classily its finaneial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances when
the Group changes its business model for managing such financial assets. The Group does not re-classify its financial fiabilities.

Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normatly the transaction price (fair value of the consideration given or
received). Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group determines the fair value of financial instruments that are quoted in active markels
using the quoted bid prices (financial assets held) or quoted ask prices {financial liabilities held) and using valuation techniques for other
instruments. Valuation techniques include discounted cash flow method and other valuation models.

Foreign eurrency transactions and translation

The management of the Group has determined Indian Rupee (“INR™ as the functional currency of the Group. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional ¢urrency are recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are re-translated at the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary jtems carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are re-transiated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

Exchange differences arising out of these translations are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Intangible Assels

Property, plant and equipment and cther intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation / amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, il any, Cost includes all expenses incidental 1o the acquisition of the property, plant and equipment and
any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Subsequent costs are capitalised only when it is
probablc that future cconomic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be:féasured reliably.
All other repair and maintenance cosis are recognized in statement of profit and loss as incurred. i S
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g)

Capital work in progress and Capital advances

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the Balance Sheet date, is shown as capital work in progress, Advances given towards
acquisition of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are disclosed in Other
Non-Financial Assets.

Depreciation of property plant and equipment

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on written down value basis as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II of
the Companies Act, 2013, taking residual value as Re.1/-. Further, assets individually costing INR 5,000/- or less are fully depreciated in
the year of purchase.

Nature of property, plant and equipment Useful life in years
Office Equipment 5 years
Computer 3 years

The Group provides pro-rala depreciation from the date the asset is ready for its intended use and in respect of assets sold, depreciation is
provided upto the date of disposal.

The residual values, estimated useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Amortisation of other intangible assets

Intangible assets comprising of software purchased are amortized on a written down wvalue over the useful life of the software
commencing from the year in which such sofiware is first ready for its intended use. The estimated useful life and amortization method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes tn estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Derecognition of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from its continuous use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in other income / expense in the slatement of profit and loss in the
year the asset is derecognised. The date of disposat of an item of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets is the date the
recipient obtains control of that item in accordance with the requirements for determining when a performance obligation is satisfied in

Ind AS 115.
Leases

The Group's lease asset classes primarily consist of lease for office premises. The Group assesses whether & coniract contains a lease at
the inception of a contract. A coniract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for 2
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to contro] the use of an identified asset, the
Group assesses whether : (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset; (ii) the Group has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease, and (iii) the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use (ROUY) asset and a corresponding lease lability for all
lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less {short-term leases) and low-value leases. For
these short-term and low-value leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.- RO gssels and lease
liabilities include these optlons when it is reasonab]y certain that they will be exercised. 74 M0 Te )
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The ROU assels are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of the Jease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequenily
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the [air value less cost
to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets, In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country
of domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjusiment to the related right of use asset if the Group
changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability has been included under 'Other Financial Liabilities' in the Balance Sheet and ROU asset have been separately presented in
the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

‘ h)  Impairment of non - financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. Il any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the assel’s recoverable amount.

Recoverablie amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. When the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax diseount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair vatue less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations
are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The impairment loss, if any,

is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which impairment takes place.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used o determine the asset’s

recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. Where an impairment foss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount

of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, however subject to the increased carrying amount not exceeding

the carrying amount that would have been determined {net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
. the asset in prior accounting periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss,

i)  Revenue recognition
{i) Interest Income or interest expense

Under Ind AS 109 interest income or expense is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial instruments
measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the expected life
of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not
credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to
initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the
asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

(ii) Dividend income

Dividend income (including from FVOC! investments) is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the diviq;n'd'_?:a:l'i’.‘ be:measured

reliably. This is generally when ‘the shareholders approve the dividend. S “
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(iii) Gain and loss from financial instruments

)]

The realised gains / losses from financial instruments at FVTPL represents the difference between the carrying amount of a financial
instrument at the beginning of the reporting period, or the transaction price if it was purchased in the current reporting period, and its
settlement price,

The unrealised gains / losses represents the difference between the carrying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the period,
or the transaction price if it was purchased in the current reporting period, and its carrying amount at the end of the reporting period.

Employee benefits

(i} Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. The
andiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognised
during the year.

(ii) Post Employment Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans

The Group’s state governed provident fund scheme and employee pension scheme are defined contribution plans. The contribution paid/
paysble under the schemes is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity

The Group’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of the graluify benefit is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees have eamed in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that benefit
is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of plan assets, if any, is deducted from such-determined present value.

The discount rate used for determining the present value is based on the Indian Government Securities vields prevailing as at the balance
sheet date that have matuity date equivalent to the tenure of the obligarion.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuations
being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit plans, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets in excess of whai has
been estimated and the effect of the asset ceiling, if any, in case of over funded plans are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. All other expenses
related to defined benefit plans is recognised in employee benefit expenses in statement of profit and loss. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

When the benefits of the plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed or settlement occurs, the portion of the changed benefit related to past
service by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment or setilement, is recognized immediately in the profit or loss account when the plan
amendment or when a curtailment or settlement occurs.

(iii) Other Long term Benefits - Compensated absences

k)

Compensated absences are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date. The
Group’s fiability towards compensated absences is determined on the basis of valuations, as at balance sheet date, carried out by an
independent actuary using Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of
changes in actuarial assumptions and arc recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest method.
Borrowing costs net of any investment income from the temporary investment of related borrowings, that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asst are capitalised as part of cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended
use or sale. A qualifying asset.is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended usg or sale. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred. A “\\

.
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)

m)

n)

Accounting for provisions contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying econemic benefits which can be reliably estimated. Each provision is
based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. Where the time value of
money is material, the amount of a provision shall be the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a
possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future evenls not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is
either not probable that an cutflow of resources will be required 1o settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be

made,

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity, The Group does not recognise contingent
asset.

Provisions, contingent assets, contingent liabilities and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Taxation
Income tax expense comprises both current and deferred tax. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the statement of profit and loss

except when they relate to items credited or debited either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity in which case the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current Tax
Current 1ax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the emount expected to be recovered from, or paid to, the
taxation authorities. The lax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the

reporting date.

Current income Lax relating to items recognised oulside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are

subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financiaf statements.

Deferred tax liabilities are generafly recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 1ax asset to be utilised.

Deferred 1ax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates {and 1ax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income
or in equity). Deferred 1ax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred 1axes relate io the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Earmings per share

The basic eamings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders by welghtedﬂvcmgc number of
equity shares outstanding durlng the reponmg p&rlod .
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0)

p)

Diluted eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Group by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity
shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. In computing diluted earnings per share, only
potential equity shares that are dilutive are included.

Dividends on ordinary shares

The Group recognises a liability 10 make cash distributions to equity holders of the Group when the distribution is authorised and the
distributien is no longer at the discretion of the Group. As per the Companies Act, 2013, a final dividend is authorised when it is
approved by the shareholders in the annual general meeting. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Segment reporting

The Group is primarily engaged in the business of investment in Companies including group companies. As such the Group’s
consolidated financial statements are largely reflective of the invesiment business and there is no separate reportable segment. Pursuant to
Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, no segment disclosure has been made in these consolidated financial statements as the Group has only
one geographical segment and ne other separate reportable business segment.
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(Currency: INR in Lakhs)

3.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand

Balances with Banks

- in current accounts

Bank deposits with maturity

less than three months

Total

3.2 Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Bank deposits with maturity more than 3 months

Fixed Deposit under lien with bank

Total

As At 31st March, As At 31st March,
2022 2021
1.20 0.05
10.74 318.52
1,002.52 -
1,014.46 318.58
1,506.13 570.62
608.96 591.11
2,115.09 1,161.73

* Fixed Deposit amounting to Rs 608.96 Lakhs { PY - 591.11 Lakhs)is under Lien is towards Security Facilty lssued by Bank
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{Currency: INR in Lakhs)

3.3  [Investments
Investments Amoriised cost At Fair Value
Designated at
Th th
rough ofher |y o ugh profit |  fair value Others * Total
comprehensive
h or loss through profit
income
or loss
As At 31st March, 2022
Investments
Equity instruments
(thers - Asian Paints Limited 16,87,479.44 - 16,87,479.44
Total - 16,87,479.44 - - - 16,37,479.44
(i) Investments outside India E - -] | - -
(ii} Investments in India - 16,87,479.44 - - - 16,87,479.44
Total - 16,87,479.44 . - - 16,87,479.44
* [nvestment - others comprise of investment in subsidiacy which is held at cost,
As at 31st March, 2021
Investments
Equity instruments
Orhers - Asian Paints Limited - 14,30,806 42 - - - 14,30,806.42
Total - 14,30,806.42 -| -| - 14,30,806.42
(i} Investments outside India - - - - - -
(i) [nvestments in India | 14,30,806.42 - - - 14,30,506.42
Torl = 14,30,806.42 = - -] 14,30,806.42
* [nvestment - others comprise of investment in subsidiary which is held at cost.
Breakop of Investments is as nnder
As At 31st March, 2022 As At 31st March, 2021
No. of shares / Mo, of shares /
units Cost Fair Value units Cost Fair Value
Equity instruments
Orhers - Agian Paints Limited (FY
INR 1/-) 5,47,89,183 102461871 16,87,479.44 5,63,38,682 1,05,614.53 14,30,806.42
Total T,02,618.71 16,87,475,44 T,05,614.53 14,30,806.42
[nvestments pledged against Bormowings
Of the above investments, 1,15,00,500 shares (31.March.2021 : 1,82,24 500 shares} of Asian Paints Limited are pledged against borrowings.
The Company has elected 1o desig the i in equity shares, which are neither held for trading nor received as contingent consideration in business|
combination, at fair value through olher comprehensive i {FYOCI). The Company chose the option of designating these in Is to be recogmised as|

FYOCI, as these equity instruments are not held for rading and management has elected 1o classify the same imevocably as equity instruments at FVOCI,

Reclassifica
During the current or previpus reporting perigds the company has not reclassified any in
The Company has not transferred any Financial assets which are transferred but are not derecognised in books of accounts,

since its initial classification.

Mare information regarding the valuation methodologies ¢an be found in Note 12.
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{Currency: INR in Lakhs)

As At 31st As At 31st
March, 2022 March, 2021

34 Other Financial Assets

Unsecured - considered good

Security deposits 19.23 14.93

Recoverable from Holding Company - 0.02

Prepaid Expenses 0.45 -

Total 19.68 14.95
A5 Current tax assets (Net of provision for tax)

Advance Payment of Taxes (net of provision Rs. 5,272.25 Lakhs & Previous year

550.00 Lakhs) 6.66 14.63

Total 6.66 14.63
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(Currency: INR in Lakhs)

3.6 Property, Plant and Equipment

Balance as at March 31, 2021

Description Office Equipments Computers Total
I. Gross Block
Balance as at March 31, 2020 1.11 1.67 2,78
Additions - 1.06 1.06
Disposals - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 1.11 2.73 384
Additions 0.10 3.78 388
Disposals - - -
Balance as at March 31st, 2022 1.21 6.51 772
Il. Accumulated Depreciation and impairment
Balance as at March 31, 2020 1.00 1.45 245
Depreciation for the year 0.10 0.46 0.56
Eliminated on disposal of asscts - - -
. Balance as at March 31, 2021 1.10 1.9] 3.01
Depreciation for the year 0.01 1.59 1.60
Eliminated on disposal of assets
Balance as at March 31st, 2022 1.I1 3,50 4,61
IT1, Net block (I-IT)
Balance as at March 31s¢t, 2022 0.10 3.01 3.11
Balance as at March 31st, 2021 0.01 (.82 0.83
3.7 Right of use assets
Description Office premises Taotal
I. Gross Block
Balance as at March 31, 2020 102.63 102.63
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 102.63 102,63
Additions
Disposals 8.94 8.94
@  Balance as at March 31st, 2022 93.69 93.69
Il. Accumulated Depreciation and impairment
Batance as at March 31, 2020 3592 3592
Depreciation for the year 20.53 20.53
Eliminated on disposal of assets - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 56.45 56.45
Depreciation for the year 16.55 16.55
Eliminated on disposal of assets
Balance as at March 31st, 2022 73.00 73.00
I11. Net block (I-IT)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 20.69 20,69
46.18 46.18




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022.

(Currency: INR in Lakhs)

3.8 Other Intangible assets

Description

1. Gross Block

Balance as at March 31, 2020
Additions

Disposals

Balance as at March 31, 2021
Additions

Disposals

Balance as at March 31st, 2022

IL. Aecumulated amortisation
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Amortisation charge for the year
Eliminated on disposal of assets
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Amortisation charge for the year
Eliminated on disposal of assets
Balance as at March 31st, 2022

III. Net block (I-II)
Balance as at March 31, 2022

Balance as at March 31, 202t

Software Total
1.65 1.65
1.65 1.65
0.21 0.21
1.86 1.86
1.14 1.14
0.42 0.42
1.56 1.56
0.15 0.15
1.71 1.71
0.15 0.15
0.09 0.09




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TQ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022.

3.15 Equity share capital

{Currency: INR in Lakhs)

Particulars As At 31st March, 2022 As At 31st March, 2021
No. of Shares Amount Na. of Shares Amount
Authorised Capital
Equity Shares of par value INR 10/- each 20,50,000 205.00 20.,50,000 205.00
Redeemable Preference Shares of JNR 10/- each 1,00,000 10.00 1,00,000 10.00
Unclassified shares of INR 10/- cach 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00
2_2&0,000 220.00 22,00,004 220.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity Shares of par value INR 10/- each fully paid up 20,50,000 205.00 20,50,000 205.00
20,50,080 265.00 20,50,000 205.00
(s} Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
. Parti No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
articulars
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 20,50,000 205.00 20,50,000 20500
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 20,50,000 205.00 20,50,000 205.00

capital:

proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Shares held by its holding company:

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to each class of shaves including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of

The Holding Company has only issued one class of ¢quity shares having a par value of INR 19/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to ene
vote per share. The Holding Company has not declared any dividend during the year. In the event of liquidation of the Holding company, the holders of]
equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in}

Particulars Name & Nature of Relationship As At 3lst As At 3st
March, 2022 March, 2021
Amount Amount
Rayirth Holding and Trading Com| Private Limited and its Halding Compan
@ oar el and Tradmg ~ompany " ol Fompany 205.00 205.00
(d) Details of the Sharcholders holding more than 5 % of the shares in the Campany:
Particul As At 31st March, 2022 As at
Arieutars s ARSI 335¢ MARCH, 2021
a . No. of Shares s . No. of Shares
%o of Holding held % of Holding held
Equity Shares
Rayirth Holding and Trading Company Private Limited 2nd its
nominees 100.00 20,50,000 100.00 20,50,000

amounls - NIL

(iif) Aggregate number and class of shares bought back - NIL

(0 For the period of five years immediately preceding the date at which the Balance Sheet is prepared:
(i) Apgregate number and class of shares aliotied as fully paid up pursuant Lo contract withont payment being received in cash - NIL;
(ii) Aggregale nnmber and class of shares allotied as fully paid up by way of bonus shares - NIL; and

{¢) Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares or disinvestmend, including the terms and




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31st March 2022

{Currency: INR in Lakhs)

o -
Sr. No. |Promoter Name No. of Shares % of total shares % Change during
the year
1 Rayirth Holding and Trading Company Private Limited 2049599 100% -
Malav Dani (as nominee of Rayirth Holding and Trading Company
2 Private Limited ) 1 0% -
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31st March 2021
Py -
Sr. No. {Promoter Name No. of Shares % of totat shares % Change during
the year
1 Rayirth Holding and Trading Company Private Limited 204999% 100% -
Malav Dani {as nominee of Rayirth Holding and Trading Company
2 Private Limited ) 1 0% -
3.16 Other Equity
Particulars As At Mst As At Mst
March, 2022 March, 2021
Statutory Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 677.98 677.98
Add: Transfered during the year 8.970.70 -
Balance at the end of the year 9,648.68 677.98
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (13,562.22) (5,538.73)
Add: Net profit for the year 58231 (8.023.49)
Add: Realised profit on sale of investments transferred from Other Comprehensive lncome 44.270.14 -
Less: Statutory Reserve as per Section 45-1C of RBI Act, 1934 (8,970.70) -
Balance at the end of the year 22,319.54 (13,562.22)
Other comprehensive income
Balance at the beginning of the year 123747970 8,02,571.25
Add: other comprehensive income for the year 2,74,231.84 4,34,908 45
Less: Realised profit on sale of invesiments transferred to Retained Eamings (44,270.18)
Balance at the end of the year 14,67,441.36 12,37,479.70
14,99,409.59 12,24,594.98

a)

c)

Nature of reserves

Statutory Reserve

It represent reserve created under Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, as amended by RBI (Amendment) Act, 1997, whereby every non|
banking [inancial company is required to transfer a sum of not less than 20% of its net profit every year as disclosed in the statement of profit and loss to|

Statutory TesCTve.

b) Retained Earnings
Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has carned till date, less any transfers to statutory reserve as per Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of]

India Act. 1935,

Equity instrument through other comprehensive income

The Group has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in other comprehensive income. These changes are|
accumulated within the FVOCI equity investments reserve within equity, The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained eamnings when the

relevant equity securities are derecognised.




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022,

(Currency : INR in Lakhs)

For the year For the year
ended 31st March, | ended 31st March,
2022 2021
3.17 Interest Income
Interest income on financial asset measured at amortised cost
- Interest on deposits with banks 66.33 123.83
- Interest on security deposits 1.34} 1.23
Total 67.67 125.06
3.18 Dividend Income
! Dividend on investments - Equity Shares 10,234.55 2,734.85
Total 10,234.55 2,734.85

3.19 Net gain / (loss) on fair value changes

Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(i) On trading portfolio { Mutual Funds) 216.53] -
(i) On financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss . -

Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 216.53 -

Fair Value changes:
-Realised 216.33 -
-Unrealised {loss) / gain - 4

D Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 216.53 -
3.20 Other Income
Interest on Income Tax refund 0.95 0.27

Total - 0.95 0.27




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022.
(Currency : INR in Lakhs)
For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
3,21 Finance Cost
Interest on borrowings 5,883.54J 8,273.84
Interest on overdraft taken from bank 2.43 5.05
Interest on debt securities 1,797.24 1,916.40|
Interest Expense on lease liability 0.22 531
Interest on delay in payment of taxes 0.03 0.01
Total 7,683.46{ 10,200.61
3.22 Employee benefits expenses
Salaries, wages & bonus 75.01 67.55
Gratuity expenses 1.52 0.97
Compensated absences expenses 1.50} 2.13
Staff welfare expenses 0.05 0.01
Total 78.08 70.66]
3.23 Depreciation, amortization and impairment
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 1.61 0.56
Amortisation on intangible assets 0.15 0.42
Depreciation on office premises taken on lease 16.55 20.53
“Total 18.31 21.51
3.24 Other expenses
Filing Fees 0.60] 0.20
Rates and Taxes 0.14 0.06
Printing & Stationary 0.87 -
Legal and Professional Expenses 30.16 2445
Goods and service tax expensed out G.OSJ 7.13
Payment to Auditor -
- Audit Fees 6.47 932
« Tax Audit fees l.06r 1.06
- Other services - (.65
Directors' Sitting Fees 4.20I i .80r
Transaction Charges by Depository Participant (DP) 5.00 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 3.45 3.64
Total o 58.00] 48.31




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2022.

{Currency: TNR in Lakhs)
As At 31st March, As At 31st March,

2011 2021

4 Earnings per share ('"EPS")
The computation of EPS is given below :
Profit afier tax 582.31 {8,0231.49)
Weighled average number of equity shares outstanding 20,50,000 20,50,000
during the year (in units) - -
Basic EPS of face value INR 10 each {(in INR) 28.41 {391.39)
Diluted Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 2,20,50,000 2,20,50,000
Diluted EPS of face value INR 10 each (in INR} 2.64 (36.39)

5 Contingent liabilities
{to the extent mot provided for)

There is no contingent liability as at 31st March, 2022 (31st March, 2021: INR Nil)

6 Capital commitments
{to the extent not provided for)

There are no contracts in capital account to be executed and not provided for as at 31st March, 2022 (31st March, 2021: INR
Nil)
7 There are no long term contracts, including derivative contraet, for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

8 Opersating leases - Ind AS 116

Assets takien on Lease :
Maturity Analysis of Lease Liabilities

The Holding Company has taken office premises on operating lease.
As At 31st March, As At 31st March,

2022 2021

Contractual undiscounted cash flows
In less than a year 18.36 24.00
In 1 year to 5 years 4.59 30.00
In more than 5 years - -
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 31st l\flhrcln, 2022 22.96 54.00
Lease Linbilities included in the statement of financial position at 31
March 2022
Current 1711 20,44
Non-current 4.52 2827
Amount recognised in profit or loss
Interest on lease liabilities 0.22 5.3
Expenses relating to short-term leases 16.55 20.53

16.77 25.85




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2022,

Employee refirement benefits

A Defined contribution plans
The Group does not have any defined contribution plans.

B. Defined benelit plan

Relirement Gratuity (Unfunded)

(Currency: INR. in Lakhs)

The Group has a defined benefit gramity pian in India {unfunded). The company’s defined benefit gratity plan is a final salary plan for
employees. Gratuity is paid from company as and when it becomes due and is paid as per company scheme for Gratuity.

The Group accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the foture based on an actuarial valustion, The following tables summarise the
components of net benefit expense recognised in the starement of profit or loss and the amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective

plans:

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date :
Mortality table

Discount rate

Salary escalation (p.a}

Employee attsition rate

Changes |n the defined beanefit obligation :

Opening defined benefit obligati

Current service cost

Past service cost

Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions

Interest on defined benefit cbligation

Benefits paid directly by employer

Remeasurements due 1o:

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from chenges in financial assumpticns
Actuaria] boss / (gain) arising from changes in demographiic assumptions
Actuarial Joss / (gain) arising on account of experience chenges
Closing defined benefit obligarion

Change in fair value of plan aaets :

Opening fair value of plan assets

Contribution by employer

Inerest on plan asset

Remeasurements due to:

Actual return on plan asaets less interest on plan assets
Benefils paid

Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year

Amount recognised in Balance Shect :

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan asscts

Net libility recoguised in Balance Sheet

Proflt and loss account expense ©

Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest on net defined liability

Total expense charged w profit and loss account

31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Indian Assured
Lives Martality

[ndian Assured
Lives Mortality

(2006-08) Ult table  {2006-08) Ut kable

6.84% 6.26%
10.00% 10.00%
10.00% 10.00%
429 2.10
1.25 0.7
- 1.49
027 0.13
031 £.91
028 0.12
a1l -
0.75 0.52
608 4.29
(6.08) (4.29)
6.08) (429)
125 0.79
0.27 018
1.52 0.97




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022.

{Cumency: INR in Lakhs)

Amount recorded in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 31st March, 2022 31si March, 2021
Remensurements during the period due to:

Changes in (inancial assumptions .28 0.12
Changes in demographic assumptions o -
Experience sdjustments 075 8.52
Actual return on plan assets less return on plan assets - -
Amount recognised in OC1 0.58 0.64
Category of Assets

Imvestments quated in active market - -

Unquoted investments :
Insurer managed funds - -

Sensithvity Analysis :

Projected Benefit Obligation on Cument Assumptions 6.08 4.29
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting 0.43 {0.35)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 0.4% o4

Delia Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 0.47 0.3¢9
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase -0.42 (0.34)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employse Turmaver (0.13) {0.11)
Deita Effect of -1%% Chanpe in Rate of Empioyee Tumover 0.14 013

The sensitivity anelysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective essumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while helding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual chenge in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions weuld occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be comrelated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensilivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the
projeciad unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating Lhe projected benefit cbligation
as Tecognised in 1he balance sheet,

There are no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity anatysis from prior years.

Projected Plan Cash Flow :
The mble below shows the expested cash flow profile of the benefils to be paid to the current membership of 1he plan based on pest service of the

employees as at the valuation date -

Maturity Profile

Expected benefils for year 1 0.3§ 0.24
Expecied benefits for year 2 0.31 0.27
Expecied benefits for year 3 0.85 0.26
Expected benefils for year 4 1.37 0.35
Expected benefits for year 5 041 0.68
Sum of Expected benefits for year 6 1o year 10 .94 1.50
Sum of Expected benefits foryear 11 and abave 6.52 5.18

The weighted average duration to the payment of these cash flows is 10 years.

Risk Associated with Defined Benefit Plan

Graruity is a defined benefit plan and the Company is exposed 1o the Following Risks |

Interest Rate Risk : A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government Securities Rate will increase the present value of the lability
requining higher provision.

Salary Risk : The present value of the defined benzfit plan liability is calculated by reference to the Furure salary of members. As such an increase
in the salary of members more [han assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Company has w manage pay-out based on pay as you
go basis from own funds.

Mortality risk : Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity
risk.

During the year, [here were ne plan amendments, curtailments and setilements.
C. Other long term benefits

by Amount recognised as a liabitity in respect.of compensated leave absences as per actuarial valuation as on 315t March, 2022 ism?.,:,‘é.'{l? ]ak.hs -
{as on 31st March 2021 is INR 4.59 lakhs): DSIRECEN




SATTYA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022.

{Currency : TN, in Lakhs)

10 Relsted Party DHselosures
(A} Names of related parties and natare of relationship :

i Ultimate Holding company
Mefree LLP

ii Holding company
Rayirth Holding and Treding Company Private Limited

iii Entities aver which the director along with relatives exercise significant influence
Adian Paims Limited
Hitech Specialities Solnions Limited

iv Directors
Mr, Malav A. Dani
Mr. Bomi Chinay
Mr. Ashwin Nagarwadia

v Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Parcy Ja! Dajee - Chief Executive Officer & Chief Financial Officer
Mirs. Prachi Talwar Desai - Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 5th February, 2020 upto 31 Decamber, 2020)
Mr. Mukesh Desai - Chief Financial Officer (w.¢ f. 17th November, 2020 1ill 30th Apaif, 2021}
Ms. Hetali Mehta - Company Secretary (W {0151 May 2021)

Note:
Jated Party Relationships, other than b » Parent and its subsidiaries, are disclosed only where the Company has transaciians with 1hass parties during the year / provious year.

{By Related Party Trunsactions :

Emtities over which the
Uitinaate Halding .

. . dicector along with Key Management
Particulars Company & Holding Subsidisry ihves exercise Direclors Persanuel (KMF)

Company significant influence

21-22 20-21 21-21 20-11 21-22 20-21 1-22 10-21 21-12 20-21

| Dividend received
Asfan Painis Limited 10,234, 55 2,734 85

Directars Sitting Fees - - - .

Interest on lenn taken from
Mr. Malav Dani - - - - - - B6.5(0 9.71 -

Lease rent paid
Hilzch Specialilies Solutions Limited - - - 2237 24.00 - R - _

Salary *
@emy Jal Dajee - - - - -
Mrs. Prachi Talwar Desi - - - - R - - .
Mr. Mukesh Desai - - - - - - - -
Mrs Hetali Mchta - - . B

B - - 14.63 1198
- 10,15
145 4.57

Loans {Received back) f Given

Canes Venatici Trading Private Limited

- =272 - - - - - -

Losn Taken from
Mr. Malav Lani - - - - - - T50.00 750 - -

L] 3

Lease Deposits Given
Hitech Specialities Soluti Ltd - - - - - - - .

Laoan Payshbe (ialuding interest accrual)

1,548 94 TI8.98 - -

Mr. Malav Dani - - - - -

Opticnally Fully Convertible Debenture
|OFCD]| Payable 1o
Mefze LLP 200601 200.00) - - - - -

Notes :
* [ the bt balances benefits arising on account of gratuity / compensated ahsences are not included as these benefits are determined al n Compay level.

Dhuring the year, (here was no matezial \ransaction with any related parties as per the Relsled Party Transactions Policy of the Company end all the related party trangactions entered into by the Company were in the ardinary
course of business and on an arm’s kength basis.
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SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2012

12

Disclosure on Financial Instruments

Accounting classification and fair values

The following Lables presents the carrying value and fair value of cach category of financial assets

{Currency: INR in Lakhs)

and liabilities as at March 31, 2022 and March 31,

2021
As at 31st March, 2022
. Equity Investments -
. Financial instruments Fair value :airt’\(value through
Particulars . through profit . Total
at amortised cost or loss other c?mprehenswe
income
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1014.46 - - 1,014.46
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 2,115.09 - - 2,115.05
Investments - - 16,87,479.44 16,87,479.44
Other financial assets 19.68 - - 19.63
3,149.22 - 16,87,479.44 16,90,628.67
Financia} Liabilities
Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and ¢.54 - - .54
small enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors ather than 9.55 - - 9.55
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Debt Securities 33,731.93 33,731.93
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 39,781.82 39,781.82
Other Financial Liabilities 21.63 - - 21.63
73,545.47 - - 73,545.47
As at 3¥st March, 2621
. Equity Investments -
. Financial instruments Fair value l?airt{ralue through
Particulars . through profit g Total
at amortised cost other comprehensive
or loss .
income
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 318.58 - - 318.58
Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents 1,161.73 - - 1,161.73
Investments - - 14,30,806.42 14,30,806.42
Other financial assets 14.95 - - 14.95
1,495.26 - 14,30,806.42 14,32,301.68
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 6.79 - - 6.79
small enterprises
(ii) total cutstanding dues of creditors other than 356 - - 3.56
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Debt Securities 22,148.52 22,148.52
Bomrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 97.519.57 97,519.57
Other Financial Liabilities 438.71 - - 48.71
1,19,727.15 - - 1,19,727.15




SATTVA HOLDING AND TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 1022

(Cumrency: INR in Lakhs)

Fair Value Heirarchy

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques (hat are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unobservable and
consist of the following three levels:

Levet 1 - Quoted prices in an active market: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities that are measured by reference to quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markels for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques wilh observable inputs: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than
quoied prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i e.; as prices) or indirectly (i.c.; derived from prices).

Level 3 - Valuation techniques wilh significant unobservable inputs: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on
assumptions (hat are neither supporied by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available
market data.

The following table summarises financial assels measured at fair value on a recurting basis and financial assets (hat are not measured at fair value on &
recurring basis:

As at Mareh 31, 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Investments in equity instruments 16,87,479.44 -
16,87,479.44 - -
As at March 31, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Investments in equity instruments 14,30,806.42 -
14,30,806.42 - -

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair values for financial instruments measured at fair
value in the balance sheet, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.

Type Valuation technique

Investments in equily instruments Published Market Value

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for the years ended 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021,
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Financial instruments and associated risks
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

» Credit risk

« Liquidity risk

« Market risk

« Interest Rate Risk

The Company has a risk management framework which not only covers the market risks but also other risks associated with the financial assets
and liabilities such as interest rate risks and credit risks.

The risk management framework is approved by the Board of Directors. The risk management framework aims to:
(i) create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of interest rate fluctuations on the Company’s business plan.

(i) achieve greater predictability to earnings by determining the financial value of the expected earnings in advance.

Credit Risk:
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a counter-party fails to meet its contractual obligations.

Trade receivables
Credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited, since the trade receivables amount is NIL.

Cash and cash equivalents

The company holds cash and cash equivalents of INR 1,014.47 lakhs as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: INR 318.58 lakhs). The credit
worthiness of such banks and financial institutions is evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good.

Bank Balance other than eash and cash equivalents
The company holds Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents of INR 2115.09 lakhs as at 3} March 2022 (31 March 2021:1161.73 INR

lakhs). The credit worthiness of such banks and financial institutions is evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be

Liguidity Risk:
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Compary manages its

liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet ils liabilitics when due, under hoth normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company's repulation.

Market Risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair velue of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. In the
case of the Company, market risk primarily impacts financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Interest Rate Rish:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest

rates. The Company does not have exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rate as it has debt obligations with fixed inferest rales which
are measured at amortised cost. L
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(Cusrency: INR in Lakhs)
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
As per the provisions of the Section 135 of the Act, Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year was INR NIL.
Due to micro and small suppliers

Sundry creditors do not include any amount payable to Small Scale Industrial Underiakings and Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. Under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) which came into force from 2 October 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made refating to
Micro, Small and Medium enterprises. On the basis of the information and records available with the management, the foltowing disclosures are made for the
amounts due 1o the Micro, Small and Medium enterprises, who have registered with the competent authorities.

Capital management

Equity share capital and other equity are considered for the: purpose of Holding Company’s capital management. The Holding Company manages its capital so ns
to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise retums to the Sharehoiders. The capilal structure of the Holding Company is based on
management’s judgement of its sirategic and day-to-day needs with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence. The funding
requirements are met through equity and operating cash flows generated. The Holding Company may Lake appropriate steps in order to maintain, ot jf necessary
adjust, its capital structure.

The Secured Listed Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) of INR 198 crore issued by the Company are secured by 49,34,000 equity shares of Asian
Paints Limited and the required asset cover for the said NCD is 4:00 times. As on 3ist March 2022, the Company has maintained the asset cover of §:49 times of
the NCDs issued. Said information is provided in accordance to the provisions of Regulation 54 of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Renuircments)
Regulations, 2015.

The Secured Listed Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) of INR 98 crore issued by the Company are secured by 21,78.000 equity shares of Asian
Paints Limired and the required asset cover for the said NCD is 4:00 times. As on 31st March 2022, the Company has maintined the asset cover of 6:60 times of
ihe NCDs issued. Said information is provided in accordance to the provisions of Regulation 54 of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2013.

Other information:

Credit Rating CRISIL AA+/STABLE
Debt Equity Ratio 0.05
Net Worth * (INR) 14,99,614.59 lakhs

* includes financial instruments fair valued through other comprehensive income

Subsequent events
There are no significant subsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statements as on the balance sheet date.

information with regards to the following matters as specified in division Il of Schedule I of The Companies Act, 2013,

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property.

The Company does not have any transactions with companics struck off.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the siatuory period as on Balancesheet
date.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Intermediaries) with the undersianding
() directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ot on behalf of the compeny (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party} with the understanding {whether recorded in
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest ity other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company has not emtered into any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that arc required to be transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6)
In respect of other than ongoing projects, there arc o unspent amounts that are required to be ransferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act
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20 Additional information pursuant to Schedule IIT to the Companies Act, 2013, has not been furnished, to the extent not applicable.

21 The Group hes been taking steps in view of the COVIDI® pandemic to ensure safety, health and wellbeing of ail employees of the Group and to ensure compliance
with directives being issued by Central/State/Local authorities. All the employees in our office have been instructed to work from home and all operations such as
interest servicing, security cover, etc. are being monitored on daily basis and executed remotely.

22 The financial statements are authorised for issne by the Board of Directors on 24th May 2022

23 Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever considered necessary.
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